Special Meeting Agenda
City Council
12:00 p.m. (noon) Special Meeting
Monday, March 4, 2019
Large Conference Room – City Hall
25 Center Street
Vermillion, South Dakota 57069

1. Roll Call
2. Visitors to Be Heard
3. Informational Session – State Historic Preservation Office Certified Local Government program –
John Prescott.
4. Educational Session – Clarification of current Comprehensive Plan policies regarding the Joint
Jurisdictional zoning area – Jose Dominguez.
5. Briefing on the March 4, 2019 City Council Regular Meeting – Briefings are intended to be
informational only and no deliberation or decision will occur on this item.
6. Adjourn.

Access the City Council Agenda on the web – www.vermillion.us
Addressing the Council: Persons addressing the Council shall be recognized. Please state your name and address. Presentations are
limited to 5 minutes. For those who do not appear on the agenda, no decision is to be expected at this time.
Meeting Assistance: If you require assistance, alternative formats and/or accessible locations consistent with the Americans with
Disabilities Act, please contact the City Manager’s Office at 677-7050 at least 3 working days prior to the meeting.
Council Meetings: City Council regular meetings are held the first and third Monday of each month at 7:00 p.m. If a meeting falls on
a City holiday, the meeting will be scheduled for the following Tuesday.
Live Broadcasts of Council Meetings on Cable Channel: Regular City Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Channel 3.
As a courtesy to others, we ask that cellular phones and pagers be turned off during the meeting.

City of Vermillion Council Agenda
7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting
Monday, March 4, 2019
City Council Chambers
25 Center Street
Vermillion, South Dakota 57069
1. Roll Call
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Minutes
a. February 19, 2019 Special Meeting; February 19, 2019 Regular Meeting.
4. Adoption of the Agenda
5. Visitors to be Heard
6. Public Hearings
7. Old Business
8. New Business
a. First reading of Ordinance 1399 to amend Title III, Administration, Chapter 32, City Organizations to
amend definitions and complaint processes, and add Commission Subcommittee preliminary review.
b. Final Plat of Lot “A” of Hawley Tract 1, in the SW ¼ of the SW ¼, the SE ¼ of the SW ¼, and the SW
¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 20; and of Government Lots 2, 3, and 4 of Section 29, and Accretion thereto,
All in Township 92 North, Range 51 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Clay County, South Dakota.
c. 2018 Annual Library Report.
d. Request for Consumption but not sale of alcohol in library for Class of 59 reunion.
e. Resolution authorizing the purchase of four vehicles.
f. Resolution authorizing the purchase of one utility vehicle.
g. Consolidated Board of Equalization appointments.
h. 2018 Unaudited Annual Report.
i. Funding request for SD Special Olympics 2019 summer games.
9. Bid Openings
a. Fuel quotes.
b. Bid Opening for Golf Cart Lease.
c. Bid Opening for Chip Seal Project.
10. City Manager’s Report
11. Invoices Payable
12. Consensus Agenda
a. Set a public hearing date of March 18, 2019 for a special daily malt beverage and wine license for the
Vermillion Area Farmers Market at 202 Washington Street for a fundraising event.
13. Adjourn

Access the City Council Agenda on the web – www.vermillion.us
Addressing the Council: Persons addressing the Council shall use the microphone at the podium. Please raise your hand to be
recognized, go to the podium and state your name and address.
a. Items Not on the Agenda Members of the public may speak under Visitors to Be Heard on any topic NOT on the agenda. Remarks
are limited to 5 minutes and no decision will be made at this time.
b. Agenda Items: Public testimony will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has been announced by the
Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen who wishes may speak one time for 5 minutes on each agenda item. Public testimony will
then be closed and the topic will be given to the governing body for possible action. At this point, only City Council members and staff
may discuss the current agenda item unless a Council member moves to allow another person to speak and there is unanimous consent
from the Council. Questions from Council members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the presiding
officer at any time.
Meeting Assistance: The City of Vermillion fully subscribes to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. If you
desire to attend this public meeting and are in need of special accommodations, please notify the City Manager's Office at 677-7050 at
least 3 working days prior to the meeting so appropriate auxiliary aids and services can be made available.
Council Meetings: City Council regular meetings are held the first and third Monday of each month at 7:00 p.m. If a meeting falls on
a City holiday, the meeting will be scheduled for the following Tuesday. The City Council typically has a Special Meeting on the first
and third Monday of each month at Noon.
Live Broadcasts of Council Meetings on Cable Channel: Regular City Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Channel 3

Vermillion City Council’s Values and Vision
This community values its people, its services, its vitality and growth, and its quality of life and sees itself reinforcing and
promoting these ideals to a consistently increasing populace.

Unapproved Minutes
Council Special Session
February 19, 2019
Tuesday - 12:00 noon
The special session of the City Council, City of Vermillion, South
Dakota was held on Tuesday, February 19, 2019 at 12:00 noon at the City
Hall large conference room.
1. Roll Call
Present: Hellwege, Holland, Humphrey, Price, Sorensen, Ward, Willson,
Mayor Powell
Absent: Collier-Wise
2. Visitors to be Heard - None
3. Informational
Dominguez

Session

–

Downtown

Streetscape

Project

–

Jose

John Prescott, City Manager, reported that this project goes back a few
years when a conceptual downtown streetscape plan was completed. John
stated that one option to assist with funding was the creation of a
Business Improvement District for the downtown area. John stated that a
citizens committee was formed for Business Improvement District #2
(BID#2) and they have been meeting to review options for completing the
downtown streetscape improvements.
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reviewed the conceptual downtown
streetscape plan developed in 2016 with input from downtown business
owners and property owners. Jose reviewed the improvements proposed
which include sidewalks, seating areas, intersection bump outs,
landscaping, trees, lighting, bike racks, etc. Jose reviewed the
conceptual plans for the major intersections. Jose stated that the BID
#2 Board has reviewed the area to be included in the district as well
as the area to benefit from the improvements. Jose stated that the BID
#2 Board will be holding public meetings on the proposed streetscape
improvements. Jose stated that the BID #2 Board will be recommending
dividing the district into two areas with Area A having direct impact
from the improvements and Area B with indirect impact from the
improvements and will be proposing different fees for each area. Jose
reviewed the estimated cost for the improvements included in the area
outlined at $2.4 million. Jose reviewed the funds available or in the
process of being acquired noting a shortfall of over $1 million. Jose
noted that options for the shortfall would be a bond or a city
interdepartmental loan. Jose reviewed the projected cash flows from the
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BID #2 property assessment and the repayment of the shortfall over a
ten year period.
Michelle Maloney and Phyllis Packard representing the BID #2 Board
reported that they are requesting a $250,000 grant from the USD
Foundation to be received over a 10 year period along with the
assessment to each property owner within the BID district. Michelle and
Phyllis answered questions from the City Council on behalf of the Bid
#2 Board. Discussion followed on the estimated project shortfall. The
consensus of the City Council was to move forward with review of the
project, including funding options as well as obtain input from
owners/operators within the district.
4. Briefing on the February 19, 2019 City Council Regular Meeting
Council reviewed items on the agenda with City staff. No action was
taken.
5. Adjourn
39-19
Alderman Sorensen moved to adjourn the Council special session at 12:42
p.m. Alderman Holland seconded the motion. Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor
Powell declared the motion adopted.
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 19th day of February, 2019.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
BY____________________________
John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor
ATTEST:
BY___________________________________
Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer

Unapproved Minutes
City Council Regular Session
February 19, 2019
Tuesday 7:00 p.m.
The regular session of the City Council, City of Vermillion, South
Dakota was called to order on Tuesday, February 19, 2019 at 7:00 p.m.
by Mayor Powell.
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1. Roll Call
Present: Hellwege, Holland, Humphrey, Price, Sorensen, Ward, Willson,
Mayor Powell
Absent: Collier-Wise
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Minutes
A. Minutes of February 4, 2019 Special Meeting; February 4, 2019
Regular Meeting.
40-19
Alderman Sorensen moved approval of the February 4, 2019 Special
Meeting and February 4, 2019 Regular minutes. Alderman Price seconded
the motion. Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the motion
adopted.
4. Adoption of Agenda
41-19
Alderman Price moved approval of the agenda. Alderman Ward seconded the
motion. Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the motion
adopted.
5. Visitors to be Heard
A. Sheila K. Gestring – Investiture Proclamation
Alderman Hellwege read the proclamation of Appreciation for Sheila K.
Gestring who had an investiture ceremony on Wednesday, February 13,
2019 as the 18th President of the University of South Dakota and
proclaimed the day as Sheila K. Gestring Day in Vermillion. Mayor
Powell stated that he would deliver the proclamation to President
Gestring.
6. Public Hearings - None
7. Old Business
A. Second Reading of Ordinance 1398 to amend Title XI, Chapter 114,
Sections 114.01 through 114.05, 114.08 and 114.10 to amend the
regulations governing Transportation Network Drivers and Companies.
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James Purdy, Assistant City Manager, reported that this was second
reading
of
the
ordinance
amending
the
regulations
governing
Transpiration Network Company drivers within the city. James reviewed
the changes to the ordinance and reported that the City Attorney has
included changes to definitions. James reported that first reading was
approved on February 4th. Discussion followed.
42-19
Second reading of title to Ordinance No. 1398, entitled AN ORDINANCE to
amend Title XI, Chapter 114, Sections 114.01 through 114.05, 114.08 and
114.10 to amend the regulations governing Transportation Network
Drivers and Companies for the City of Vermillion, South Dakota.
Mayor Powell read the title to the above named Ordinance, and Alderman
Hellwege moved adoption of the following:
BE IT RESOLVED that the minutes of this meeting shall show that the
title to the proposed Ordinance No. 1398 entitled an Ordinance to amend
Title XI, Chapter 114, Sections 114.01 through 114.05, 114.08 and
114.10 to amend the regulations governing Transportation Network
Drivers and Companies was first read and the Ordinance considered
substantially in its present form and content at a regularly called
meeting of the Governing Body on the 4th day of February, 2019 and that
the title was again read at this meeting, being a regularly called
meeting of the Governing Body on this 19th day of February, 2019 at the
City Hall Council Chambers in the manner prescribed by SDCL 9-19-7 as
amended.
BE IT RESOLVED and ordained that said Ordinance be adopted to read as
follows:
ORDINANCE 1398
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF VERMILLION CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE XI,
CHAPTER 114, SECTIONS 114.01 THROUGH 114.05, 114.08 AND 114.10 AMENDING
THE REGULATIONS GOVERNING TRANSPORTATION NETWORK DRIVERS AND COMPANIES
BE IT ORDAINED, by the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion, South
Dakota that sections 114.01 to 114.10 shall be amended to read as
follows:
§ 114.01 DEFINITIONS.
For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply
unless the context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning.
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Digital Network. Any online-enabled application, software, website, or
system offered or utilized by a TNC or taxicabs that enables the
prearrangement of rides with a driver.
Driver. One who actually engages in driving a vehicle for hire.
Operator. A person, organization, company, or other entity engaged in
operating a vehicle for hire business.
Prearranged ride. The provision of transportation by a driver to a
rider, beginning when a driver accepts a rider’s request for a ride
through a digital network controlled by a TNC, continuing while the
driver transports a requesting rider, and ending when the last
requesting rider departs from the TNC personal vehicle.
Taxicab. A motor vehicle for carrying passengers for hire, along nonprescribed routes, with a seating capacity of nine or less persons. The
term taxicab shall not include funeral cars, ambulances, limousines,
buses, wheelchair transport vehicles, paratransit, and stretcher
transport.
TNC. Transportation Network Company entity that uses a digital network
to connect passengers to TNC services and the drivers that use their
TNC personal vehicle to provide vehicle-for-hire services. The TNC does
not manage, own, or lease the personal vehicles of the drivers.
TNC Driver. A person who receives connections to TNC riders and related
services from a TNC in exchange for payment of a fee to the TNC and who
uses a TNC personal vehicle to provide a prearranged ride to riders
upon connection through a digital network controlled by TNC in return
for compensation or payment of a fee.
TNC Personal Vehicle. A vehicle that is used by a TNC driver to provide
a prearranged ride and is owned, leased, or otherwise authorized for
use by the TNC driver.
TNC Rider. A person who uses a TNC’s digital network to connect with a
TNC driver who provides a prearranged ride to the person in the
driver’s TNC personal vehicle between points chosen by the person.
Vehicle for Hire. Means any vehicle licensed under this chapter as
taxicab or TNC personal vehicle.
Wheelchair Transport Vehicles, Paratransit, and Stretcher Transport.
Means a motor vehicle-for-hire which carries wheelchairs, conducts
paratransit, and transports stretcher passengers and their accompanying
guests or care givers, with a seating capacity for 12 persons or less,
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not including the driver, not traveling any definite or prescribed
route, operated by a driver, and carrying or accepting wheelchair,
paratransit, or stretcher passengers and their accompanying guests or
care givers, but shall not include licensed ambulance services. Such
vehicles shall be equipped with straps to secure wheelchairs and
stretchers and in the case of stretchers arranged so that the head of
the passenger is visible to the driver.
§ 114.02
BUSINESS.

LICENSE/APPLICATION

REQUIRED

TO

OPERATE/AFFILIATE

WITH

A

(A) No person shall engage in the business of operating a taxicab(s)
or vehicle-for-hire, upon the streets, without a license as required
herein.
(B) Every person desiring a license to operate a taxicab business in
the city shall make application in writing to the governing body. The
application shall include the following information:
(1) Name of the taxicab or vehicle-for-hire service, the operator, and
owner(s) of the taxicab vehicle(s).
(2) Description of the taxicab(s) vehicle(s) by make, model, VIN
number, and license plate number, vehicle registration, name of
owner(s) of the licensed vehicle, and a completed vehicle inspection
form for each vehicle.
(3) Statement of previous experience in the business, if the applicant
has not been licensed by the city previously.
(C) No person shall engage in the business of being a TNC affiliated
driver, upon the streets, without an application as required herein.
(D) Every person desiring to be a TNC affiliated driver in the City
shall make an application in writing to the City Manager. The
application shall include the following information:
(1) Name of Transportation Network Company, TNC Driver, their TNC
affiliation, and TNC recognized and approved Personal Vehicle(s).
(2) Description of recognized and approved TNC personal vehicle(s) by
make, model, VIN number, and license number, state license number, name
of owner of the licensed personal vehicle, and a completed vehicle
inspection form for the personal vehicle as required in 114.04(B)(2).
(3) Statement of previous experience in the business, if the applicant
has not applied with the city previously.
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(E) Each recognized and approved TNC personal vehicle and driver must
register individually.
(F) Each TNC affiliated driver who wishes to obtain a vehicle-for-hire
driver's license must comply with 114.08 qualifications of applicant.
(G) Each TNC affiliated driver must provide sufficient evidence to the
City Manager or designee that the driver has successfully passed a
TNC's background check.
§ 114.03 BUSINESS LICENSE FEE; EXPIRATION; REVOCATION.
The taxicab business license fee required shall be set by resolution.
The fee is nonrefundable, and shall be purchased yearly to operate a
taxicab. The license shall expire on December 31 following its
issuance. The license may be revoked, for cause, by the governing body.
§ 114.04 TAXICAB LICENSE; ISSUANCE.
(A) The governing body shall have discretion to approve or disapprove
the taxicab business license application depending on whether the
governing body deems the applicant a suitable person to hold the
license.
(B) The governing body may issue the license if it is satisfied that
the application demonstrates:
(1)

The applicant is of good moral character.

(2) The vehicle(s) to be used have been inspected by a certified
mechanic to show the taxicab(s) is thoroughly and carefully tested, and
found to be in safe condition for transportation of passengers, is in
good, clean condition, and is in compliance with all other applicable
state and federal motor vehicle laws and standards. All vehicles being
used must comply with the City of Vermillion's vehicle-for-hire
inspection form.
(3) The applicant has indemnity and public liability insurance
covering the operation of each vehicle to protect the operator against
liability to passengers and third persons for personal injury suffered
or sustained by them as a result of the operation of the vehicle. The
policies will be in an amount set by resolution, but in no event less
than the provisions prescribed by SDCL 32-40-9 to SDCL 32-40-23
inclusive. The liability insurance required shall be set by resolution.
§ 114.05 DISPLAY OF BUSINESS LICENSE.
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Every driver of any taxicab licensed under this chapter shall exhibit a
copy of the taxicab business license in the vehicle and have it
available for inspection upon request, or be able to present a digital
copy.
§ 114.06 DISPLAY OF RATE CARD.
(A) Every taxicab vehicle operated under this chapter shall have a
rate card stating the fare rates displayed in such a place as to be in
full view of all passengers. A current copy of the rate card shall be
provided to the Finance Officer. No rates shall be charged other than
those displayed on the rate card.
(B) TNC
network.

shall

present

fare

calculation

method

on

their

digital

§ 114.07 LICENSE REQUIRED OF VEHICLE-FOR-HIRE DRIVER(S).
No person shall drive, or be engaged or employed in the business of
driving, upon the public streets of the city, any vehicle-for-hire,
without first having procured a license therefor from the City Manager
or designee.
§
114.08
APPLICATION
FOR
VEHICLE-FOR-HIRE
QUALIFICATIONS OF APPLICANT; APPEAL FROM DECISION.

DRIVER'S

LICENSE;

(A) Each applicant, with the exception of TNC drivers pursuant to
114.l0(F), must submit to, pay for, and provide an initial and annual
FBI and DCI fingerprint background check to determine the applicant's
suitability. Each new applicant shall make their own arrangements with
a law enforcement agency to submit to the fingerprinting process when
required. The applicant may be issued a conditional license pending the
results of the background check.
(B) The City Manager or designee shall have discretion to approve or
disapprove the application depending on whether the City Manager or
designee deems the applicant a suitable person to hold the license. The
City Manager or designee may issue the license if the City Manager or
designee is satisfied that the applicant has demonstrated that the
applicant:
(1)

Is at least 19 years of age;

(2) Has never been diagnosed with epilepsy, heart problems, sleep
apnea, vertigo or any other infirmity that could affect their ability
to safely operate a motor vehicle;
(3)

Has not been convicted in the preceding seven years of a felony;
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(4) Has not been convicted or received judgments for more than three
moving traffic violations in the preceding three years, or at least one
violation involving reckless driving or driving on a suspended or
revoked license in the preceding three years;
(5) Has not been convicted
misdemeanor involving:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
or
g.

resisting a
dishonesty
injury to a
operating a
operating a
operating a

in

the

preceding

seven

years

of

a

law enforcement officer;
person;
motor vehicle while intoxicated;
motor vehicle in a manner that endangers a person;
motor vehicle with a suspended or revoked driver license

damage to the property of another person;

(6) Has not been convicted more than once of operating a motor vehicle
while intoxicated in the preceding ten years;
(7) Has not been convicted of using, the possession of, or possession
with intent to distribute any controlled drug or substance in the
preceding seven years;
(8)

Is not a match in the state or national sex offender registry;

(9) Has completed the TNC’s local and national background check and
driving record check;
(10) Possesses a valid state driver's license; and
(11) Possesses proof of valid vehicle registration and automobile
liability for motor vehicles to provide vehicle for hire service.
(C) The applicant may appeal the decision of the City Manager to the
Governing Body.
(D) The applicant and/or driver is required to notify the City Manager
immediately if there are any changes regarding their ability to meet
any of the conditions listed above. Failure to do so may result license
revocation and/or nonrenewal.
§ 114.09 FEE
REVOCATION.

FOR

VEHICLE-FOR-HIRE
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DRIVER'S

LICENSE;

EXPIRATION;

The fee for a license required by § 114.07 shall be a nonrefundable
amount set by resolution, which shall be paid to the Finance Officer
before issuance of the license. The license shall expire on December 31
following issuance. The license may be revoked by the City Manager or
designee, for cause, with appeal to by the governing body.
§ 114.10 REGULATIONS FOR TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANIES.
(A)

A TNC driver shall not solicit or accept street hails.

(B) The TNC must provide all transaction options within their digital
networks, and cannot receive cash for their services.
(C) The TNC digital network must provide to the customer a photo
identification of the driver, a description of the TNC personal
vehicle, and TNC personal vehicle's license plate number.
(D) The TNC must maintain records regarding trips of passengers for at
least one year from the date the trip was provided. TNC driver must
provide individual customer's records at least until the one-year
anniversary of the date on which a TNC driver's customer relationship
with the TNC has ended. The City may in its sole discretion inspect
these records whenever crime or regulatory violation is alleged
involving the TNC or the TNC driver. These records are to be maintained
confidential to the extent possible.
(E) The TNC must comply with the indemnity and public
insurance requirements as established in 114.04(B)(3).

liability

(F) The TNC shall have a third party conduct a City approved local and
national criminal background check capable of ensuring compliance with
SDCL 32-40-3 through SDCL 32-40-5 for each applicant prior to allowing
an individual to accept trip requests.
(G) The TNC shall have a zero tolerance policy for drug and alcohol
use by transportation network company drivers as required by SDCL 3240-5. The TNC shall establish and enforce a zero tolerance policy for
drug and alcohol use by TNC drivers during any period when a TNC driver
is engaged in, or is logged into the TNC's digital network but is not
engaged in, a prearranged ride. The policy shall include provisions
for:
(1)

Investigations of alleged policy violations, and

(2)

Suspensions of TNC drivers under investigation.
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(H) The TNC must provide a copy of its active South Dakota sales tax
license to the City.

Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 19th day of February, 2019.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
By________________________________
John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor
ATTEST:
By_________________________________
Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer
Adoption of the Ordinance was seconded by Alderman Holland. Thereafter,
the question of the adoption of the Ordinance was put to a roll call
vote of the Governing Body, and the members voted as follows:
Hellwege-Y,
Holland-Y,
Humphrey-Y,
Price-Y,
Sorensen-Y,
Ward-Y,
Willson-Y, Mayor Powell-Y
Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor Powell declared that the Ordinance has
been adopted and directed publication thereof as required by law.
8. New Business
A. Update on possible
Relations Commission

changes

to

City

Code

related

to

the

Human

Addison McCauley, Vermillion Human Relations Commission Chairperson,
reported that the City Council approved the ordinance establishing the
Vermillion Human Relations Commission (VHRC) on July 7, 2018. Addison
reported that the VHRC is charged with two primary tasks: 1) Education
through disseminating information and conducting public meetings
regarding inclusivity and anti-discriminatory practice and 2) Receiving
complaints of alleged discriminatory practices in employment, housing,
labor organizations, education, property rights, and providing public
accommodations or services. Addison stated that, since appointed, the
Commission has been focusing on finalizing and disseminating the
complaint Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) timelines, templates,
and policies that would allow the Commission to begin to fulfill our
second primary task. Addison reported that; as the commission discussed
the practical implementation of our procedures and conferred with
representatives from the State Commission of Human Rights, the
Chairpersons from the Brookings and Sioux Falls HRCs, and the City
Attorney; we came to realize that some amendments to the adopted
ordinance would be required to accommodate for regulations in State
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statutes as well as the practical implementation of the complaint ADR
procedures. Addison stated that the proposed amendments to the
ordinance are still in line with the agreed upon procedures provided by
the April 18, 2018 Policies and Procedures Committee meeting. Addison
reported that the amendments address policies regarding the procedure
timeline and mode of notification for both parties, the addition of a
Commission Subcommittee charged with the preliminary review of received
complaints, a statute workaround with regard to the definition of
officially “filing” a complaint, and other basic formatting alignment
corrections. Addison reported that a draft of an ordinance was included
in the packet which outlined the proposed changes recommended by the
VHRC. Discussion followed with Addison answering questions of the City
Council on the draft ordinance language along with suggestion to move a
section.
43-19
Alderman Sorensen moved to accept the report of the Vermillion Human
Relations Commission and include the proposed ordinance change on an
upcoming meeting agenda. Alderman Ward seconded the motion. Motion
carried 8 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the motion adopted.
B. Request from the Vermillion Chamber of Commerce and Development
Company to close Prentis Avenue from E. Main Street to E. Clark Street
on Thursday, May 9, 2019 from 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. for a professional
baseball exhibition game.
James Purdy, Assistant City Manager, reported that the Vermillion Area
Chamber of Commerce and Development Company (VCDC) is requesting a
street closure for the Professional Baseball Exhibition event between
the Sioux City Explorers and the Sioux Falls Canaries, on Thursday May
9th. James noted that the closure would be for Prentis Avenue from E.
Clark Street to E. Main Street from 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. James
reported that this closure is a proactive safety precaution in the
event that a child runs out in the street to retrieve a foul ball.
James noted that the VCDC have relayed to the City that they will
notify all of the residents that could be affected by the closure.
James stated that the VCDC and parks staff will man the barricades to
allow residents access during the closure. James reported that the
contact person for this closure is VCDC staff member Mike Bartos.
Discussion followed.
44-19
Alderman Hellwege moved approval of the request from the Vermillion
Chamber of Commerce and Development Company to close Prentis Avenue
from E. Main Street to E. Clark Street on Thursday, May 9, 2019 from
4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. for a professional baseball exhibition game.

12

Alderman Humphrey seconded the motion. Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor
Powell declared the motion adopted.
C. Final Plat for Lots 1 and 2, Groh Addition, in the NW ¼ of the NE ¼
of Section 20, T92N, R51W of the 5th P.M., Clay County, South Dakota.
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported on the land which is on the
south side of E. Main Street approximately 1200 feet east of the
intersection of Cypress Drive. Jose stated that the owner’s intention
is to separate the existing single-family dwelling addressed as 2509 E.
Main Street from the rest of the land containing wetlands. The plat
will create two lots. Lot 1 will be 0.73-acres and Lot 2 will be 15.12acres. Jose reported that this plat falls within the Joint
Jurisdictional Zoning Area. Jose reported that the plat was first
reviewed by the County’s Planning Commission which was completed with a
recommendation for approval at their January 29, 2019 meeting. Jose
stated that the City Council can either approve or disapprove the plat.
Jose reported that the City Council and the County Commissioners, at a
joint meeting on December 3, 2018, granted Mr. Groh a variance to have
a smaller lot than allowed by ordinance. Jose reported that staff finds
that the final plat meets ordinance requirements and recommends
approval. Discussion followed on the proposed plat.
45-19
After reading the
following plat:

same

once,

Alderman

Ward

moved

approval

of

the

WHEREAS IT APPEARS that the owners thereof have caused a plat to be
made of the following described real property: Lots 1 and 2, Groh
Addition, in the NW ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 20, T92N, R51W of the 5th
P.M., Clay County, South Dakota for approval.
BE IT RESOLVED that the attached and foregoing plat has been submitted
to and a report and recommendations thereon made by the Clay County
Planning Commission to the City Council of Vermillion which has
approved the same.
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED that access shall be granted to the lot in
accordance with the City of Vermillion street access and driveway
approach policy, which requires an application permit.
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the attached and foregoing plat has been
submitted to the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion which has
examined the same, and it appears that the systems of streets and
alleys set forth therein conforms to the system of streets and alleys
of the existing plat of such city, and that all taxes and special
assessments, if any, upon the tract or subdivision have been fully paid
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and that such plat and survey thereof have been executed according to
law, and the same is hereby accordingly approved.
The motion was seconded by Alderman Humphrey. Discussion followed and
the question of the adoption of the Resolution was presented for a vote
of the Governing Body. 7 members voted in favor of and 1 members voted
in opposition to the Resolution. Mayor Powell declared that the
Resolution was adopted.
D. Report of the Labor and Finance Committee on making a contribution
to the State Special Olympics Summer Games
John Prescott, City Manager, reported that the Labor and Finance
Committee met February 4, 2019 to discuss the Special Olympics State
Summer Games funding request. John reported that the committee is
recommending that the City Council consider a $2,500 contribution to
the summer games. John stated that he would recommend that the funding
come from the BBB Sales Tax Fund. John noted that action cannot be
taken on a committee report at the meeting the report is made.
Discussion followed.
46-19
Alderman Sorensen moved to accept the report of the Labor and Finance
Committee on the Special Olympics Summer Games funding request and
include the recommendation on a future Council meeting. Alderman Ward
seconded the motion. Motion carried 8 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the
motion adopted.
E. Resolution authorizing the purchase of one Police vehicle and three
pickup trucks
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, stated the 2019 Equipment Replacement
Fund included the replacement of the following vehicles: 2004 ¾ ton
flatbed pickup, 2003 ¾ ton pickup, 2016 Ford Interceptor Police SUV and
2001 1 ton flatbed pickup. Jose reported that staff compared prices
acquired from Sourcewell and state bids with similar vehicles from
Vermillion Ford and Jerry’s Chevrolet. Jose reviewed the chart of price
comparisons. Jose recommended approving the Resolution to purchase the
following vehicles from Vermillion Ford: two 2019-Ford Super Duty F-350
SRW for $59,756, a 2019-Ford Interceptor SUV for $35,695, and a 2019Ford F-550 for $41,675. Discussion followed.
47-19
After reading the same once, Alderman Willson moved adoption of the
following:
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF
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THREE PICKUP TRUCKS AND ONE POLICE VEHICLE
WHEREAS, SDCL 5-18A-37 authorizes a governmental entity to enter into
agreements with purchasing agents in any other state for purchases
under a joint agreement or contract at the accepted bid price and the
concurrence of said bidder; and
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion has reviewed and determined that the
lowest bid awarded by Sourcewell for two 1-ton pickup trucks is in the
total amount of $62,946 which offers an advantageous price to the City
for said item; and
WHEREAS, the City has contacted Vermillion Ford of Vermillion and they
have agreed to sell the same vehicles offered through Sourcewell at the
lower price of $59,756; and
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion has also reviewed and determined that
the lowest bid awarded to the State of South Dakota for a police
interceptor and a 1-ton 4x4 pickup truck for a total amount of $77,497;
and
WHEREAS, the City has contacted Vermillion Ford of Vermillion and they
have agreed to sell the same vehicles offered through the State of
South Dakota at the lower price of $77,370.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Body of the City of
Vermillion, that the City Finance Officer is hereby authorized to
purchase two 2019 Ford Super Duty F-350 SRW, a 2019 Ford Interceptor
SUV and a 2019 Ford F-550 4x4 from Vermillion Ford of Vermillion, South
Dakota at the above stated price of $137,126.
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 19th day of February, 2019.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
By _________________________
John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor
ATTEST:
By _________________________________
Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer
The motion was seconded by Alderman Sorensen. Discussion followed and
the question of the adoption of the Resolution was presented for a vote
of the Governing Body. 8 members voted in favor of and 0 members voted
in opposition to the Resolution. Mayor Powell declared that the
Resolution was adopted.
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F. Resolution authorizing the purchase of a trailer for the Parks and
Recreation Department
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, stated that the 2019 Equipment
Replacement Fund included the purchase a dump trailer for the Parks and
Recreation Department. Jose noted that this would be a new piece of
equipment that would be used instead of the dump body on one of the
pickup trucks being replaced this year. Jose noted that this piece of
equipment is under the bid law limit but staff requested a quote from a
couple of possible providers with only one quote received.
Jose
reported that the quote from Yankton Trailers, from Yankton, SD was for
a 76”x10’ dump trailer for $5,530. Jose noted that included in the 2019
budget was a transfer from second penny sales tax of $8,000 to the
equipment replacement fund for this purchase and as the purchase was
under budget not all funds would need to be transferred. Jose
recommended approving the resolution to purchase the 76”x10’ dump
trailer for $5,530 from Yankton Trailers. Discussion followed.
48-19
After reading the same once, Alderman Willson moved adoption of the
following:
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE
OF A DUMP TRAILER
WHEREAS, SDCL 5-18A-22 (19) exempts a governmental entity from any
requirements found in chapters 5-18A through 5-18D when purchasing
equipment costing less than $50,000; and
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion has reviewed and determined that the
lowest quote received was from Yankton Trailer, Yankton, SD for a
76”x10’ dump trailer in the total amount of $5,530 which offers an
advantageous price to the City for said item.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Body of the City of
Vermillion, that the City Finance Officer is hereby authorized to
purchase a 76”x10’ dump trailer from Yankton Trailers of Yankton, South
Dakota at the above stated price of $5,530.
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 19th day of February, 2019.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
By _____________________________
John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor
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ATTEST:
By ___________________________________
Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer
The motion was seconded by Alderman Hellwege. Discussion followed and
the question of the adoption of the Resolution was presented for a vote
of the Governing Body. 8 members voted in favor of and 0 members voted
in opposition to the Resolution. Mayor Powell declared that the
Resolution was adopted.
G. Agreement for Professional Services with Helms and Associates for
Hangar Taxi-lanes Rehabilitation Design Project
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported the latest capital improvement
plan for the airport shows that during the 2019 year the City would
start the design for the hangar taxi-lane rehabilitation. Jose reported
that the agreement with Helms & Associates is for the rehabilitation of
the hangar taxi-lanes located at the airport. Jose reported that the
actual work to rehabilitate the hangar taxi-lanes would start in 2019
and be completed in 2020. Jose stated that the agreement for design is
estimated to cost $46,703.92 of which 90% will be reimbursed by a
federal grant and 5% will be reimbursed by a state grant for a net cost
to the City of less than $2,400. Jose recommended approval of the
professional services agreement. Discussion followed on the grant
funding amounts.
49-19
Alderman Ward moved approval of the Agreement for Professional Services
with Helms and Associates for Airport Project Number AIP 3-46-0056-132019 so that the City can start the design process to rehabilitate the
hangar taxi-lanes. Alderman Humphrey seconded the motion. Motion
carried 8 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the motion adopted.
H. Agency Agreement between the State of South Dakota Department of
Transportation and the City of Vermillion for Airport Improvements
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported that State law requires that
all federal funding for airports go through the South Dakota Department
of Transportation (SDDOT) before being distributed to the City. Jose
reported that neither the City, nor the State, has a copy of the last
signed agreement but the SDDOT estimates it was decades ago. Jose
reported that currently the City is responsible to pay for the entire
costs of projects completed at the airport. Jose stated that this
agreement allows the State to reimburse the City for a large portion of
the cost. Jose reported that currently the reimbursement rate is 90%
from the Federal government, 5% from the State and the remaining 5% is
the City’s responsibility. Jose reported that this agreement does not
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pin down the reimbursement rates, but make reimbursement possible as
long as certain criteria are met. Jose noted that, even though this
agreement is very general in nature, the City would still be required
to enter into a separate agreement with the SDDOT for each particular
airport project. Jose noted that when entering into the separate
agreements, the financial responsibilities for the City, State and
Federal governments will be written out. Jose recommended authorizing
the Mayor to sign the agreement with the SDDOT.
50-19
Alderman Holland moved approval Agency Agreement between the SDDOT and
the City of Vermillion for Airport Improvements and authorized the
Mayor to sign. Alderman Hellwege seconded the motion. Motion carried 8
to 0. Mayor Powell declared the motion adopted.
I. Renewal of Janitorial Services for City of Vermillion Facilities
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported that since late February 2017
the City has contracted with Service Masters of Southeast South Dakota,
from Yankton, to perform janitorial services on several City owned
buildings. Jose stated that the original contract signed on February 6,
2017 allows for two one-year additional renewals and this would be the
second, and last, one-year renewal. Jose reported that this year it was
agreed to include a few changes to the new contract. The largest change
would be the removal of the Vermillion Fire and EMS Station 1 from the
list of buildings to be cleaned, with the exception of the stripping
and waxing the floors in parts of the building. Jose stated that the
new price from Service Masters is for $40,146.20 which is $12,356.80
less than the previous contract. Jose recommended approval of the
renewal contract. Discussion followed.
51-19
Alderman Willson moved approval of the renewal of the janitorial
services contract with Service Masters of Southeast South Dakota in the
amount of $40,146.20. Alderman Ward seconded the motion. Motion carried
8 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the motion adopted.
Alderman Ward requested to be excused at 7:39 p.m.
J. Agreement with SECOG to administer South Dakota Housing Development
Authority
grant
for
SD
Housing
Development
Authority
Housing
Opportunity Funds for mobile home renovation
John Prescott, City
applied for Housing
Housing Development
was for $60,000 of

Manager, reported that in October 2018 the City
Opportunity Funds awarded through the South Dakota
Authority. John stated that the grant application
funding to assist residents with improvements to
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mobile homes and $6,000 for administration of the grant. John reported
that the City received notice in December that the $66,000 grant award
was approved. John noted that Cottage Villa residents will have the
first opportunity to utilize up to $5,000 of grant funding per
household to assist with expenses related to placement of their mobile
home unit at another mobile home park in the city limits. John noted
that per the grant award, other mobile home units in the community will
be able to access the funding for health and safety improvements after
July 31, 2019. John stated that the grant agreement designates SECOG to
perform administrative functions such as verify the eligibility of
grant fund recipients, provide periodic reports to the SD Housing
Development Authority, process payments, grant closeout work, and other
related functions. John noted that there is no match required for the
$6,000 of administration funding while the $60,000 of grant award
funding will require a match of in-kind and/or cash funding. John
recommended approval of the grant administration agreement with SECOG.
Discussion followed on the matching requirement for the grant.
52-19
Alderman Sorensen moved approval of the Agreement with SECOG to
administer the South Dakota Housing Development Authority grant for SD
Housing Development Authority Housing Opportunity Funds for mobile home
renovation in the amount of $6,000. Alderman Hellwege seconded the
motion. Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the motion
adopted.
K. Resolution authorizing the purchase of Landfill bale bags
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported that the Solid Waste Department
uses landfill bale bags in its daily operations at the landfill. Jose
stated that the landfill baler compresses the solid waste and slides
them into the bale bags before the baled waste is transported to the
landfill cell for final disposal. Jose stated that less than a year ago
the City purchased 18,000 bale bags from Global Packaging Solutions,
LLC (GPS) for $54,900. Jose noted that the City has had issues with
some of the bale bags not fitting the baler chute properly, some of the
bags may rip, or the bags may not close properly. Jose noted that staff
has been in constant contact with GPS regarding these issues with the
existing bale bags. Jose reported that GPS has agreed to credit the
City for a third of the bale bags bought in 2018 if the City agrees to
purchase bags from them in 2019. Jose stated that, after review, staff
believes that purchasing the bale bags from GPS would be the best
option for the City with the new order being for 18,000 bale bags for
$36,600 net after the credit of $18,300 for the defective bags received
in 2018. It should be mentioned that all of the bags, for any of the
four possible suppliers in the nation, are manufactured overseas. Jose
reviewed the issues with the bale bag industry noting that GPS has
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reassured us that they have addressed the quality issues. Jose noted
that SDCL 5-18A-22 (3) allows the City to purchase from a bid awarded
within 12-month of the date of the new order. Jose recommended approval
of the resolution to purchase bale bags. Discussion followed on the
purchase price with the credit.
53-19
After reading the same once, Alderman Holland moved adoption of the
following:
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF
LANDFILL BALE BAGS
WHEREAS, SDCL 5-18A-22 (3) allows for any purchase of supplies, or
services, other than professional services, by purchasing agencies from
any active contract that has been awarded by any government entity by
competitive sealed bids or competitive sealed proposals or from any
contract that was competitively solicited and awarded with the previous
twelve months; and
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion has reviewed and determined that the
2018 awarded bid of $54,900 for 18,000 landfill bale bags from Global
Packaging Solutions, LLC, from New York, is an attractive bid; and
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion would be receiving a credit for $18,300
on the 2019 order of bale bags due to a number of issues with the 2018
bale bags received from Global Packaging Solutions, LLC, in 2018; and
WHEREAS, after applying the credit of $18,300 to the $54,900 the City
would only be paying $36,600 for 18,000 bale bags.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Body of the City of
Vermillion, that the City Finance Officer is hereby authorized to
purchase 18,000 bale bags from Global Packaging Solutions, LLC, from
Valley Stream, New York, at the above stated price of $36,600.
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 19th day of February, 2019.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
By ____________________________
John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor
ATTEST:
By ________________________________
Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer
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The motion was seconded by Alderman Willson. Discussion followed and
the question of the adoption of the Resolution was presented for a vote
of the Governing Body. 7 members voted in favor of and 0 members voted
in opposition to the Resolution. Mayor Powell declared that the
Resolution was adopted.
9. Bid Openings - None
10. City Manager's Report
A. John reminded citizens that snow is to be removed from the sidewalk
within 24 hours after the end of a snow event.
B. John reminded citizens that Kidder Street will be closed from Court
Street west to the north – south alley between Court and Market Streets
on Saturday, February 23rd from 11:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. for the Polar
Plunge.
C. John reported that there is an opening on the Planning Commission
with a term that runs through June 2022. Expression of Interest forms
are due by Noon on Wednesday, March 13, 2019 in anticipate that the
City Council will make an appointment at the March 18th meeting.
PAYROLL ADDITIONS AND CHANGES
Ambulance: Aaron Fest $12.20/hr-$12.20/training hr-$18.30/holiday hr;
Recreation: Ryan Sevening $9.75/hr; Parks: Chris White $9.50/hr;
Communications: Kristen Namanny $16.58/hr; Solid Waste: Tim Taggart
$28.44/hr
11. Invoices Payable
54-19
Alderman Willson moved approval of the following invoices:
AT&T Mobility
Broadcaster Press
Brunick's Service Inc
Buhl's Cleaners
Bureau Of Administration
Campbell Supply
Cask & Cork
Centurylink
Clay Rural Water System
Clay-Union Electric Corp
Dakota Beverage

library hot spots
advertising
fuel
mat/mop svc
telephone
supplies
merchandise
telephone
water usage
electricity
merchandise
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442.70
458.50
4,691.40
576.96
175.02
214.47
522.00
1,584.87
48.90
2,073.40
7,358.18

Global Dist.
Gregg Peters
Hauger Lawn Service
Intoximeters
John A Conkling Dist.
Johnson Brothers Of SD
Jones Food Center
Jose Dominguez
Loren Fischer Disposal
Matheson Tri-Gas, Inc
MidAmerican
Midcontinent Communication
Republic National Distributing
Reserve Account
SD DENR
Shane Griese
Southern Glazer's Of SD
Staples Business Credit
Stern Oil Co.
Sturdevants Auto Parts
Thein Well
United Parcel Service
Us Postmaster
Vermillion Ace Hardware
Vermillion Chamber Of Commerce
Davis Pharmacy
Quality Motors

merchandise
managers fee
cleanup
supplies
merchandise
merchandise
supplies
meals reimbursement
haul cardboard
cylinder rental
gas usage
internet/cable service
merchandise
postage for meter
landfill operations fee
meals reimbursement
merchandise
supplies
fuel
parts
pump well repairs
shipping
postage for utility bills
supplies
business imp district
Bright Energy Rebate
Bright Energy Rebate

136.00
6,000.00
45.00
1,950.00
3,458.75
10,909.13
108.42
26.00
1,150.00
52.71
12,025.87
746.57
11,387.02
900.00
3,041.14
28.00
1,189.26
1,400.65
6,412.39
74.27
32,835.44
57.49
1,050.00
89.78
815.36
1,588.68
540.00

Alderman Price seconded the motion. Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor Powell
declared the motion adopted.
12. Consensus Agenda - None
13. Executive Session – Contractual Matter
55-19
Alderman Price moved to go into Executive Session for contractual
matters at 7:45 p.m.
Alderman Humphrey seconded the motion.
Motion
carried 7 to 0.
Mayor Powell declared the council in executive
session.
Mayor Powell declared the meeting out of Executive Session at 8:12 p.m.
14. Adjourn
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56-19
Alderman Sorensen moved to adjourn the Council Meeting at 8:13 p.m.
Alderman Price seconded the motion. Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor Powell
declared the motion adopted.

Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 19th day of February, 2019.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
BY____________________________
John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor
ATTEST:
BY___________________________________
Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer
Published once at the approximate cost of ___________.
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8. New Business; item a

Council Agenda Memo
From:

James Purdy, Assistant City Manager

Meeting:

March 4, 2019

Subject:

First Reading of Ordinance 1399 – Amending Vermillion Code of
Ordinances Title III: Administration, Chapter 32: City Organizations

Presenter:

Addison McCauley, Vermillion Human Relations Commission Chairperson

Background: On July 7, 2018, the City Council unanimously approved Ordinance 1377 to
establish a Human Relations Commission for the City. The VHRC is charged with two
primary tasks: 1. Education through disseminating information and conducting public
meetings regarding inclusivity and anti-discriminatory practice; and 2. Receiving
complaints of alleged discriminatory practices in employment, housing, labor
organizations, education, property rights, and providing public accommodations or
services.
The Commission meets the first Thursday of every month at 7:00 PM, and these meetings
are open to the public. We have had five regular public meetings since our first meeting on
September 18, 2018 as well as one 4-hour special afternoon meeting in December. During
the special meeting in December, the Commission discussed and agreed upon the specifics
of the complaint alternative dispute resolution (ADR) procedures and policies.
Discussion: Since appointed, the Commission has been focusing on finalizing and
disseminating the complaint ADR timelines, templates, and policies that would allow us to
begin to fulfill our second primary task. Looking to our current ordinances, we had a
general outline to follow to help us accomplish these goals. However, as we discussed the
practical implementation of our procedures, and conferred with representatives from the
State Commission of Human Rights, the Chairpersons from the Brookings and Sioux Falls
HRCs, and the City Attorney, we came to realize that some amendments to the adopted
ordinance would be required to accommodate for regulations in State statutes as well as
the practical implementation of the complaint ADR procedures.
To be clear, the procedures are still in line with the agreed upon procedures provided by
the April 18, 2018 Policies and Procedures Committee meeting. The amendments in
proposed Ordinance 1399 address policies regarding the procedure timeline and mode of
notification for both parties, the addition of a Commission Subcommittee charged with the
preliminary review of received complaints, a statute workaround with regard to the
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definition of officially “filing” a complaint, and other basic formatting alignment
corrections.
Financial Consideration: The cost of publication.
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends that the City Council
approve the first reading of Ordinance 1399, which would amend Title III: Administration,
Chapter 32: City Organizations.

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 1399
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF VERMILLION CODE OF ORDINANCES
TITLE III, ADMINISTRATION; CHAPTER 32, CITY ORGANIZATIONS; SECTIONS
32.41, 32.47, AND SECTIONS 32.50 THROUGH 32.61 AMENDING DEFINITIONS,
CORRECTING FORMATING, CLARIFYING A QUORUM, AND DISMISSAL,
PRELIMINARY REVIEW, AND INVESTIGATION OF COMPLAINTS.
BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion, South Dakota that
sections 32.41, 32.47, and sections 32.50 through 32.61 to read as follows:
§ 32.41 DEFINITIONS.
COMPLAINANT. A person for whom, or on whose behalf, a verified complaint alleging
unlawful discrimination has been filed or issuedsubmitted to the Commission.
DISABILITY. A physical or mental impairment of a person resulting from disease, injury,
congenital condition of birth or functional disorder which substantially limits one or more of the
person's major life functions; a record of having an impairment; or being regarded as having an
impairment which:
(A) For purposes of § 32.49 (A) through (C), inclusive, is unrelated to an individual's ability
to perform the major duties of a particular job or position, or is unrelated to an individual's
qualifications for employment or promotion;
(B) For purposes of § 32.49 (D) and (H) is unrelated to an individual's ability to acquire, rent,
or maintain property; and
(C) For purposes of § 32.49 (E) and (F) is unrelated to an individual's ability to utilize and
benefit from opportunities, programs, and facilities of accommodations and services.
This term does not include current illegal use of or addiction to marijuana as defined in SDCL
subdivision 22-42-1(7) or a controlled substance as defined in SDCL subdivision 22-42-1(1).
DISCRIMINATORY OR UNFAIR PRACTICE. Any unlawful act or attempted unlawful
act which, because of sex, race, color, creed, religion, ancestry, disability, national origin or
familial status, results in the unequal treatment or separation or segregation of any person, or
denies, prevents, limits or otherwise adversely affects, or if accomplished would deny, prevent,
limit or otherwise adversely affect the benefit or enjoyment by any person of employment, a
labor union membership, housing accommodations, property rights, education, public
accommodations, and public services. DISCRIMINATORY OR UNFAIR PRACTICE as
defined above is unlawful and is a violation of this subchapter. In addition, it is the policy of the
City that discriminatory practices based on marital status, military or veteran status, gender
identity, or sexual orientation, while not prohibited by state law, constitute unfair practices which
adversely affect people. The Commission, through public information promotion and as
permitted by § 32.50, will seek to improve human relations and eliminate such unfair practices.
Accordingly, discriminatory practices based on marital status, military or veteran status, gender

identity, or sexual orientation will not be investigated or be the subject of complaint resolution
procedure until permitted by state law. However, such acts may be brought to the attention of the
Commission by a complainant in the form of a verified complaint, which is consistent with the
provisions of § 32.51 for record keeping and referral purposes.
FILE. A verified complaint is officially FILED with the To submit a verified complaint or
verified answer to the Commission , the respondent, or any court of competent jurisdictionwhen
the Commission has completed a preliminary review of said verified complaint and determined
that an investigation of discriminatory or unfair practice shall commence in accordance with
SDCL 20-12-4.
PARTY. The complainant or the respondent.
REAL ESTATE BROKER OR REAL ESTATE SALESPERSON. A real estate broker and a
real estate salesperson as defined by SDCL§ 36-21A-6 or as licensed pursuant to SDCL§ 3621A-47.
RESPONDENT. A person against whom a verified complaint alleging unlawful
discrimination has been filed or issued.

§ 32.47 QUORUM/RULES AND REGULATIONS.
(A) A majority of the voting members of the Commission then holding a current appointment
shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of all official business.
(A)(B) Any decisions made by the Commission regarding actions to be taken on any official
business shall be determined by a majority of a quorum.

§ 32.50 SUBSTANTIVE AND PROCEDURAL AUTHORITY AND DUTIES.
The authority and duties of the Commission shall be to:
(O) Hear and inquire into verified complaints alleging discrimination regarding the City of
Vermillion in accordance with the procedures set forth in this subchapter. Pursuant to state law,
there is presently no legal authority to investigate verified complaints alleging discrimination
because of marital status, military or veteran status, gender identity, or sexual orientation.
Accordingly, until state law authorizes municipalities, pursuant to SDCL 20-12-4, to investigate
discriminatory practices based on marital status, military or veteran status, gender identity, or
sexual orientation, these discriminating practices cannot be investigated by the Commission.
However, such acts may be brought to the attention of the Commission by a complainant in the
form of a verified complaint, which is not inconsistent with the provisions outlined in § 32.51,
for record and referral purposes. The Commission shall have no regulatory enforcement powers
which are inconsistent with the provisions of this subchapter.

§ 32.51 SUBMITTINGFILING A VERIFIED COMPLAINT.
(A) Any person claiming to be aggrieved by a discriminatory practice may submitfile to with
the Commission a verified complaint which shall state the name and address of each person
complained against (respondent[s]) and shall set forth the pertinent facts as known to the
complainant.
(A)(B) Any verified complaint shall be submitted to the Commission by means of
completing and submitting a verified complaint form made available to the public by the City.
(C) Any verified complaint submittedfiled with the Commission under this subchapter shall
be submittedfiled within one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days after the last occurrence of
an alleged discriminatory or unfair practice.

§ 32.52 DISMISSAL OF COMPLAINT PRIOR TO FILING.
The Commission may order the dismissal of any verified complaint prior to investigation
if the Commission determines in good faith that:
(A) The unlawful act or practice complained of occurred outside city limits;
(B) The verified complaint has been abandoned or withdrawn by the complainant;
(C) The City is not authorized by state law to investigate the verified complaint;
(D) The complainant fails to state a claim within the verified complaint form upon which
relief can be granted;
(E) The unlawful act or practice complained of has been satisfactorily eliminated and that
further proceedings are unnecessary; or
(F) The allegations complained of are being processed or have been addressed to the
satisfaction of the Commission by another agency or by a court of competent jurisdiction.

(B)

§ 32.53 COMMISSION SUBCOMMITTEE PRELIMINARY REVIEW.

(A) Promptly upon the receipt of any verified complaint, either the Commission Chairperson
or Vice Chairperson shall meet with two additional Commission Members within ten (10)
calendar days to review and recommend whether or not said verified complaint shall be
dismissed as prescribed in § 32.52. These three Commission Members shall be referred to as the
Commission Subcommittee for said verified complaint.
(B) Promptly after the review of any verified complaint by a Commission Subcommittee, the
Commission Subcommittee shall submit a report to the Commission summarizing their
recommendation and reasoning therefor.

(C) The Commission shall meet to review any Commission Subcommittee report within five
(5) calendar days of the completion of said report.

§ 32.542 SERVICE OF RESPONDENT AND VERIFIED ANSWER.
(A) Upon review of any Commission Subcommittee report, the Commission shall promptly
either:
(1) Dismiss the verified complaint as prescribed in § 32.52 and serve a notice of
complaint dismissal, by personal service or registered or certified mail, unto the complainant; or
(2) File the verified complaint and serve a notice of complaint investigation, by personal
service or registered or certified mail, unto the complainant and a notice of complaint and
investigation and verified response form, by personal service or registered or certified mail, unto
the respondent.
(B) Promptly upon the filing of any verified complaint with the Commission, the
Commission shall serve a copy thereof, by personal service or registered or certified mail, unto
the respondent. The respondent shall file a verified answer thereto within ten (10) business days
after receipt thereof or within any period of extension granted by the Commission Chairperson.
The verified complaint and verified answer shall remain confidential documents until such time
as the matter is referred to either a court of competent jurisdiction or to the State Commission of
Human Rights. Within fifteen (15) calendar days after the service of a notice of complaint and
investigation, or within any period of extension granted by the Commission Chairperson, the
respondent may submit to the Commission a completed verified response form.

§ 32.53 DISMISSAL OF COMPLAINT.
(A) The dismissal of a verified complaint may be ordered by the Commission if:
(A)
The Commission determines in good faith that the allegations of discrimination
are not well founded, or that the supporting facts presented do not amount to probable cause to
investigate further;
(B)
The Commission determines that the verified complaint has been abandoned or
withdrawn by the complainant;
(C)
The Commission determines that the verified complaint has been abandoned or
withdrawn or because the City is not authorized by state law to investigate it;
(D)

The complainant fails to state a claim upon which relief can be granted;

(E)
The Commission determines in good faith that the unlawful act or practice
complained of has been satisfactorily eliminated and that further proceedings are unnecessary; or

(F)
The allegations complained of are being processed or have been addressed to the
satisfaction of the Commission by another agency or by a court of competent jurisdiction.
(B) Upon the determination to dismiss a verified complaint, the Commission shall within five
(5) business days, serve notice of the determination and reasoning upon the complainant and
respondent by personal service or registered or certified mail.

§ 32.554 COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION; DETERMINATION OF PROBABLE
CAUSE AND REFERRAL.
(A) Except to the Commission and either party involved in a verified complaint, any and all
documents submitted to or created by the Commission, or copies thereof, regarding an allegation
of discrimination asserted in said verified complaint shall remain confidential documents until
such time as the matter is transferred to either a court of competent jurisdiction or to the State
Commission of Human Rights.
(A)(B) Within five (5) calendar days following the fifteen-day wait period, or following any
period of extension granted by the Commission Chairperson to allow for a respondent to submit
a completed verified response form, tThe Commission shall meet and proceed in good faith to
investigate a verified complaint and verified answer to determine whether there is probable cause
to support anythe allegations of discriminatory or unfair practice. The investigative information
and materials are confidential until determination of probable cause or lack of probable cause.

(B)(C) If the respondent does not wish to file submit a verified response answer form to the
verified complaint, probable cause shall be determined with regard to the information available
to the Commission.
(D) The Commission may request the complainant and/or the respondent to appear before the
Commission for a pre-determination conference if deemed necessary by the Commission.
(C)
(D)(E) Upon the completion of any investigation of discriminatory or unfair practice by the
Commission, If the Commission determines there is no probable cause to support whether the
allegations of discrimination are well founded, the Commission shall dismiss the verified
complaint and promptly notify both parties via personal service or registered or certified mail
along with the reasons for the dismissal. If probable cause is found to support the allegations, the
Commission shall promptly transmit serve athe notice of determination of probable cause along
with the reasons for the determination , by personal service or registered or certified mail, unto
both parties.to both the complainant and respondent via personal service or registered or certified
mail. Additionally, referrals to appropriate state regulatory bodies and other relevant resources
that may help to remedy the matter may also be sent along with the notice of determination of
probable cause, if any. Both the complainant and respondent shall be permitted to inspect any
documents not prepared by the Commission in the files of the Commission that are relevant to
the determination of probable cause.

(E)(F) The Commission shall keep for record any and all documents, or copies thereof,

regarding an allegation of discrimination asserted in a verified complaint form filed submitted
towith the Commission. Both parties shall be permitted to inspect any documents not prepared
by the Commission in the possession of the Commission that are relevant to the determination of
probable cause upon request.

§ 32.565 CONSULTING WITH THE CITY ATTORNEY.
(C) The Commission shall only request to employ the consultation services of the City
Attorney when the Commission members believe that it is necessary for the just and competent
effectuation of their duty to determine probable cause regarding a specified matter, or specified
matters, within a verified complaint that has been filed submitted towith the Commission.

§ 32.576 TRANSFER AFTER PROBABLE CAUSE DETERMINATION.
If the matter before the Commission is not resolved informally, either party must elect to assert
their claims in circuit court in order to have them determined. If such election does not occur
within twenty (20) calendar days following notice of probable cause determination, the matter
shall be dismissed by the Commission.

§ 32.587 TRANSFER OF COMPLAINTS TO STATE COMMISSION.
Upon the filing of any verified complaint, the parties to the verified complaint shall be
notified that any party thereto may, within fifteen (15) calendar days of the date of receipt of the
notice of the proceeding, demand as a matter of right that the matter be transferred to the State
Commission of Human Rights, which shall process the verified complaint under the provisions
of SDCL Ch. 20-13. Immediately upon receipt of notice of a party’s demand to transfer the
verified complaint under this provision, the Commission shall forward the verified complaint to
the State Division of Human Rights and shall thereafter have no further jurisdiction with regard
to the verified complaint.
Statutory reference:
Similar provision, see SDCL § 20-12-9

§ 32.598 RIGHTS OF PARTIES NOT ABRIDGED.

§ 32.6059 APPLICATION TO OTHER DISABILITIES.

§ 32.610 SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.

Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 18th day of March, 2019.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA
BY____________________________
John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor
ATTEST:
BY______________________________
Michael D Carlson, Finance Officer
First Reading: March 4, 2019
Second Reading: March 18, 2019
Published: March 29, 2019
Effective: April 18, 2019

8. New Business; item b

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Jose Dominguez, City Engineer

Meeting:

March 4, 2019

Subject:

Final Plat of Lot A of Hawley Tract 1, in the SW ¼ of the SW ¼, the SE ¼
of the SW ¼, and the SW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 20; and of Government
Lots 2, 3, and 4 of Section 29, and Accretion thereto, all in Township 92
North, Range 51 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Clay County, South
Dakota

Presenter:

Jose Dominguez

Background: Landmark Survey Co., Inc, has submitted a plat on behalf of the owner of
the previously mentioned land. The plat will separate the farmstead from the rest of the
property creating two parcels of land. The plat will create two lots. Lot A will be 5.44acres and the rest of Tract 1 will be 153.01-acres. The land is on the south side of
Burbank Road approximately a third of a mile east of Natalie Court, or south of the
City’s golf course.
This plat falls within the Joint Jurisdictional Zoning Area. Due to this, the plat first is
reviewed by the County’s Planning Commission. After their review, they make a
recommendation to the City Council. The City Council can either approve or disapprove
the plat.
The County’s Planning Commission reviewed and approved the plat at their February 25,
2019 meeting.
Discussion: Staff found that the plat complies with all of the code provisions.
Financial Consideration: All fees have been paid by the applicant.
Conclusion/Recommendations: Staff finds that the final plat meets ordinance
requirements and recommends approval of the final plat.

8. New Business; item c

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Daniel Burniston, Library Director

Meeting:

March 4, 2019

Subject:

Annual Library Report

Presenter: Dan Burniston
Background: State law requires the Library to prepare and submit an annual report to the
South Dakota State Library and its governmental body. The annual report of the Edith B.
Siegrist Vermillion Public Library is presented to the City Council and Clay County
Commissioners as they provide funding for the library.
SDCL 14-2-40. Duties of trustees. Each board of public library trustees shall:
(1) Appoint a librarian to serve at the pleasure of the board. Any paid librarian shall receive any employee
benefits provided all other employees of the local governmental unit and shall be compensated at rates
determined by the governing body's compensation schedule, if such schedule exists. If no such schedule
exists, the salary shall be set by the local governing body;
(2) Adopt bylaws for the conduct of their business and adopt policies for the selection of public library
materials, the governance of the library, and the use of public library services and materials;
(3) Prepare and submit an annual budget request to its governing body;
(4) Adopt a final annual budget within those funds certified to it as being appropriated in the annual budget of
its governing body;
(5) Meet at least once during each quarter of the year;
(6) Prepare and submit an annual report to its governing body and to the South Dakota State Library on such
forms as may be provided by the State Library.

Discussion: The annual report was presented and accepted by the Library Board of
Trustees at their February 23, 2019 meeting. The report will also be presented to the Clay
County Commission at a future meeting. The report is compiled and submitted
electronically. The report is typically presented in the spring.
Financial Consideration: None
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends that the City Council
acknowledge receipt of the 2018 Annual Report for the Edith B. Siegrist Vermillion
Public Library.
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FY2018 Annual Survey of South Dakota Public Libraries
Shaded fields are prefilled in the online survey. Contact the SDSL Data Coordinator to make changes to these
fields: shawn.behrends@state.sd.us / 605-280-5834 / toll free 800-423-6665

SECTION A. – GENERAL INFORMATION
Library Name

County

EDITH B SIEGRIST VERMILLION PUBLIC LIBRARY
Mailing Address

CLAY
Street Address

18 CHURCH STREET

18 CHURCH STREET

Mailing City

Zip Code

VERMILLION

57069

Contact
Library Director

Email address of director

daniel.burniston@vermillionpubliclibrary.org

T

Daniel Burniston
Library Phone

Admin
Fiscal year reporting

AF

6056777060

Legal Service Area
Boundary Change

Jan - Dec

Government unit under which
library is legally established

No

Population

City

R

Population of the Legal Service Area
Based on Census population estimates for your legal service area.
Estimated population of total service area
Estimate the population you actually serve.

D

Number of Central Libraries

Number of Branch Libraries

1

Building/
remodeling of
library

1903

10,772
14,117
$ $15

What does the library charge for a nonresident library card?

Outlets

Year legally established

0

Number of Bookmobiles

0
Total square
footage main
library

Building/remodeling explanation

No

22,890

Codes
Legal Basis Code

Municipal Government (city, town or village)

Public Libraries Survey FY2018 Annual Statistical Report

Geographic Code

City (most nearly)

1

2

Library Hours - Public service hours of the main branch.
Open

Close

Total hours

Sunday

1:00

5:00

4.00

Monday

8:00

9:00

13.00

Tuesday

8:00

9:00

13.00

Wednesday

8:00

9:00

13.00

Thursday

8:00

9:00

13.00

Friday

8:00

6:00

10.00

10:00

5:00

7.00

Saturday

Total hours open per week

SECTION C. -- PERSONNEL

Head Librarian

Hours worked per
week by head
librarian

40

60,558.96

Other Librarians

Total number of OTHER
paid librarians

1

Total number of OTHER
librarians worked per week

Total hours worked per
week-ALL librarians

30

All Other Paid Staff

Total number of all other
paid staff hours worked per
week

All other paid staff FTE

268

Total paid employees FTE

8.45

Average hours/week by staff
paid by non-library source

Non-library pay sources

D

1.75

6.70

Staff paid by non-library sources
Number of staff paid from
other sources

0

0

Volunteers

Total number of volunteers

ALA-MLS Librarians
Total number of ALA-MLS librarians

Average number of hours worked by
volunteers per week

50

Hours worked per week – ALAMLS librarians

2
2019 Survey of Library Staff Pay

7

Total paid librarians FTE

70

R

Total number of all other
paid staff

Total number of
years head
librarian has
worked in the field

Masters of Library Science

AF

$

1

Highest education level
achieved by head librarian

T

Current Annual
Salary

Head Librarian

10

73.00

12.0

FTE librarians ALA-MLS librarians

70

1.75

C22. Librarians (reported in C06)

a.. Lowest hourly wage
$21.75
$

B . Highest hourly wage
$
$21.75

C23. Other library staff (reported in C10)

$

$9.00

$

$19.86

$21.75

$

$29.57

C24. ALA-MLS Librarians (reported in C19)
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$

2
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SECTION D -- INCOME

Operating Income received during fiscal year
Operating income – City/Town

$631,567

Operating income – County

$4,000

Operating income – School District

$0

Operating income – Tribal Appropriation

$0

Operating income – College Appropriation

$0

Operating income – Other Contracts (other libraries or towns)

$0

Local Government Revenue

$635,567

State Appropriations

$0

Federal Income

$0

What amount of federal operating income is from LSTA grants?
Other Operating Income

$42,133

Total Operating Income

T

$677,700

Capital Income
Local government capital income

AF

State government capital income

$0
$0

Federal government capital income

$0

Other capital income

$0

Total capital income

Staff Expenditures

$0

SECTION E -- EXPENDITURES

R

Salaries and Wages for Library Staff
Total employee benefits

$287,478
$94,615

Total all salaries and benefits

$382,093

Collection Expenditures

$64,026

Electronic materials expenditures

$12,062

Other materials expenditures

$17,349

Total expenditures for library materials

$93,437

D

Print materials expenditures

Other Operating Expenditures
All other operating expenditures

$148,197
Total operating expenditures

$623,727

Capital Expenditures
Capital expenditures on facility

$0

Capital expenditures on technology

$0

Other capital expenditures

$0

Total Capital Expenditures

$0
Total Expenditures

Public Libraries Survey FY2018 Annual Statistical Report

$623,727

3
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SECTION F – LIBRARY HOLDINGS
Books
Books (print)

58,871

Ebooks accessed through SDTG

18,282

Other ebooks units* owned, leased, licensed

380

Total Ebooks

18,662

Subscriptions
Current print serial subscriptions

153

Audio, Video, Other

2,610

Audio – downloadable units* accessed through SDTG

7,073

Other downloadable audio units* owned, leased, or licensed

7,863

Total downloadable audio
Video – physical units*
Video – downloadable units*

AF

Other (films, multimedia kits, maps)

T

Audio – physical units*

14,936
3,145
0
253

Electronic Collections (Databases)

Local/other licensed electronic collections (databases)

8
54

Total licensed electronic collections (databases)

62

Total Holdings

98,692

D

R

State licensed electronic collections (databases)
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SECTION G – SERVICE ACTIVITIES
Library Service Indicators

Annual public services hours per year (ALL outlets)

3,638

Annual total attendance in the library

104,505

Annual total reference transactions completed.

3,490

Registered users

6,315

Collection Use
Circulation of Physical Materials
Books

57,831

Magazines and other print items not included above

1,768

Non print physical items

27,156

Total Physical Item Circulation

86,755

T

Circulation of Electronic Materials
Ebooks
Video

AF

Audiobooks (and music)

4,834
3,626
0

Use (circulation) of Electronic Materials

8,460

Electronic Collection (database) Use

SDSL-provided electronic collections use

1,012

Other electronic collection use

4,455

Successful Retrieval of Electronic Information

R

Total Circulation of Materials

5,467
95,215

Children’s Materials Circulated

30,372

Total Electronic Content Use

13,927

D

Total Collection Use

100,682

Library Programs

Library Programs

Library Program Attendance

--Birth thru PreK

376

5,636

--Kindergarten thru age 11

406

7,270

Children Ages 0-11

782

12,906

79

440

175

2,789

1,036

16,135

Young Adult Ages 12-18
Adult Ages 19 and over
Total

One-to-One Programs / Summer Reading
How many one-to-one program sessions did the library conduct?
Has the library hosted a summer reading program in the past year?

Public Libraries Survey FY2018 Annual Statistical Report

1,072
Yes

5

6

Internet
How is public internet access provided?

both landlines and public WiFi

Total number of Internet computers for use by general public

38

Annual number of public access/ internet use sessions (30-minute sessions)

31,140

Annual wireless sessions

11,165

URL of the library’s webpage

http://vermillionpubliclibrary.org/

Annual Website Visits

53,479

Does the library actively maintain a social media presence?

Yes

2019 Supplemental Internet Questions

AF

T

Would you be interested in replacing your current website, or setting up a
We are pleased with the functionality of our current website
basic library website, that your staff can easily manage and update?
If yes, how much could the library afford annually to have a website that is
user-friendly and easily updatable by library staff?
Do any other organizations or businesses in your community offer FREE pubic
Yes
WiFi? (You are not expected to make a purchase to use it.).
What type of broadband connection does your library currently have? (select
Cable Modem
all that apply)
Does the library currently take advantage of federal E-rate discounts for
No
broadband connectivity or equipment costs?
If no, the library does not apply for E-rate funding because: (select all that
The library receives its internet access at no charge from the broadband service provider or
apply)

Library Policies and Practices

Do you have a written policy for non residents?

Yes

Does the library charge fines for overdue materials?

Yes

What automation system do you use?

If you have an automated system, is it connected to the internet?

R

Resource Sharing / Interlibrary Loan

Received from/ borrowed from
other libraries

Out-of-state total

D

In-state total
Total ILLs
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Atriuum - Book Systems
Yes, available online

Provided/sent/loaned to other
libraries

56

2

569

665

625

667

6
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SECTION H. – TRUSTEES
Library Board Members
Name

Address

Office Held

Term
Expires
2020

Diane Leja

26 S. Yale Street, Vermillion, SD 57069

Martha Muellenberg

1215 Baylor Street, Vermillion, SD 57069

Vice President

2019

Kelsey Collier-Wise

224 Forest Ave, Vermillion, SD 57069

City Council Rep.

2019

Gabrielle Strouse

1405 Lewis Street, Vermillion, SD 57069

Trustee

2019

Greg Redlin

1135 Valley View Drive, Vermillion, SD
57069
318 Prentis Ave

Trustee

2020

Trustee

2021

Library Board Information
Trustee meetings held per year

AF

T

Katy Beem

President

R

Trustees appointed by what governing body?
Trustee meeting schedule

D

Date of last public library board meeting
Are you aware of and do you comply with the SD Open Meetings
law?
Does the library board need training in any of the following areas?

Friends of the Library / Library Foundation
Does your library have a Friends of the Library group?
President’s name and address
Does you library had a Library Foundation?
President’s name and address

Public Libraries Survey FY2018 Annual Statistical Report

Monthly
City Council

Normally Third Thursday of every month at 12pm
2019-01-17

Yes
No training is needed at this time

Yes

Anne Dunham - 200 Forest Ave, Vermillion, SD 57069

Yes

Darla Tassler - 814 West Dartmouth, Vermillion, SD 57069

7
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SECTION I-J. – STANDARDS / POLICIES / EVENTS / SURVEY CONTACTS
Library currently accredited under voluntary SD Public Library Accreditation Standards?

Yes

Is the library director currently certified under the voluntary Staff Certification program?

Yes

Local governmental ordinance or minutes on file with SDSL?

Yes

Library board by-laws updated in last two years?

Yes

Technology/Internet policies updated in the last two years?

Yes

Library has an up-to-date disaster plan?

No

Craig Johnson Author Visit, Sam Miller Author Visit, Cook the
Book, Homework Helpers, Books & Brews, Teen Gaming, PLT
Early Dismissal Movies, Mobile Hotspots checkout, MLK Day
Activities, UpNext Coffee hour, Ukelele Lessions, Trunk or
Treat, Earth Day Community Programming, Summer Literacy
Tutoring, Parade of Lights, Dakota Days, Coffee & Coloring,
Henna Night, Food in Film Discussions, Qi-Gong, Meditation,
Dances of Universal Peace, Lunch & Learn, Human Library,
Chanting, Book Chatter, Literary Lunch, Peggie Douglas
Badge Clark presentation, Jerry Wilson Author Visit,
Cardboard Boat Regatta, Star Wars YA Program, YA
Halloween Program.

AF

T

Narrative listing any special events

Daniel Burniston

Diane Leja

D

R

Librarian or staff member completing the
survey
President of Board of Trustees/ or Director of
Institution

Annual Report – Public Libraries Survey FY 2017
Public Libraries Survey FY2018 Annual Statistical Report
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D

R

AF

T

STATE NOTES (attached to individual questions on the annual report form)

Public Libraries Survey FY2018 Annual Statistical Report
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SELECTED KEY RATIOS – FY 2018
These are key ratios and percentages generated by the survey tool. Per
capita ratios are based on the population of the library’s legal service area
(LSA)--the population of the geographic area that the library serves.*
Population used for per capita ratios*
Per capita ratios: Divides the total monetary or service statistics by the
population served. This ratio helps you compare values among libraries of
different sizes.
Financial Measures
Local government operating revenue per capita
All income from local government sources divided by LSA. This is the best
single measure of the library’s local financial support.
Total operating revenue per capita
Includes income from state, federal, and miscellaneous sources.
Total operating expenditures per capita
Collection expenditures per capita
This is the dollar amount spent per resident on new library materials.

Your library
FY 2017

10,772

10,844

787,081

$59.00

$56.09

$32.76

$62.91

$61.10

$34.33

$57.90

$55.56

$33.05

$8.67

$8.18

$4.21

T

Service Measures
Registered borrowers per capita**
The ratio of people registered to use library services. This can show what
ratio of the community are active library users if the library regularly
purges its files of inactive users.
Library visits per capita
The average number of library visits per resident. It is an indicator of
public awareness of library services.
Total circulation per capita
The average number of loans made to residents. Low circulation ratios
may be a result of low collection expenditures or indicate that the library
should evaluate the relevancy of its new materials purchases to
community needs.
Public internet uses per capita
The average number of sessions (measured in 30 minute units) per
resident that the library’s public computers were used.

0.53

0.47

9.7

7.1

4.7

8.8

7.4

7.6

2.9

3.3

1.3

0.96

0.87

1.23

31.9%

29.7%

40.5%

8.9%

9.0%

10.4%

1.50

1.61

0.42

16.5

19.2

21.3

5.6

4.5

14.6

0.59

AF

R

D

Collection and Circulation Ratios
Circulation turnover
The number of circulation transactions divided by the total number of
items in the library’s collection. It is an indicator of how often each item is
checked out. Low turnover rate may also indicate that the library should
consider “weeding” its collection of outdated and unused materials.
Circulation of children’s materials as a % of total circulation
Compares ratio of children’s materials circulated to total circulation. It is
useful to know when considering other services to children.
Circulation of electronic materials as a % of total circulation
Ratio of digital materials (ebooks, downloadable audiobooks, etc.) to total
circulation.
Library Program Ratios and Totals
Programs require increased allocation of library resources such as staff,
time, materials.
Total program attendance per capita
Ratio of people in the community who attended library programs.
Children’s attendance per program
Young adult attendance per program

Statewide
average
FY 2017

Your library
FY 2018

Adult attendance per program

13.7
15.9
14.6
*For Lawrence, Meade & Pennington county libraries: We calculated your per capita population based on a formula
that combines the library’s local population and your library’s ratio of total circulation for the county.
**The library’s registered borrower records should be purged of inactive users at least every three years.

Public Libraries Survey FY2018 Annual Statistical Report
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SECTION B. – OUTLET / BRANCH INFORMATION -- FY 2018
B01. Location

EDITH B SIEGRIST VERMILLION PUBLIC LIBRARY

B02. Address

B03. City

18 CHURCH STREET

VERMILLION

B06. County

B07. Phone Number

CLAY

B04. Zip Code

57069
B08. Outlet Code

6056777060

B09. Square footage of branch / outlet

Central Library

B10. Number of bookmobiles in outlet record

22,890
B11. Total public service hours OPEN per year

0
B12. Total number of weeks per year branch is open

52

T

3,638
B13. Branch Librarian

B05. Zip +4

B14. Total Branch Staff paid

Daniel Burniston

D

R

73

B16. Total days open during typical week

AF

B15. Total hours open during typical week

Annual Report – Public Libraries Survey
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YEAR IN REVIEW

Vermillion Public Libr
Librar
aryy
2018

11,165

104,505

VISITORS TO THE LIBRARY

1036

17,207

PRO
PROGRAMS
GRAMS
OFFERED

PROGRAM
ATTENDANCE

687

ANNUAL
WIRELESS
SESSIONS

OUTREACH
DELIVERIES

86,755
TIMES ITEMS
WERE CHECKED OUT

737

31,140

1343

PUBLIC COMPUTER
SESSIONS

TOTAL FACEBOOK
FOLLOWERS

53,479
WEBSITE VISITS

NEW CARDS THIS YEAR

4,834

E-BOOKS
CHECKED OUT

6,315

REGISTERED
PATRONS

625

INTERLIBRARY LOAN
ITEMS BORROWED

3,490
REFERENCE
QUESTIONS
ANSWERED

3,638
HOURS
OPEN

$64,026

SPENT ON NEW PRINT BOOKS

Edith B. Siegrist Vermillion Public Library
18 Church St | Vermillion, South Dakota 57069 | (605) 677-7060 | vermillionpubliclibrary.org/

8. New Business; item d

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Mike Carlson, Finance Officer

Meeting:

March 4, 2019

Subject:

Permit for consumption but not sale of alcohol on Saturday, June 8, 2019
from noon to 9:00 p.m. for Class of 59 Reunion at the Edith B. Siegrist
Vermillion Public Library Kozak Room at 18 Church Street

Presenter:

Mike Carlson

Background: Luann Ouellette, representing the Class of 59, has requested a permit for
the consumption, but not the sale, of alcoholic beverages on public property for a Class of
59 reunion to be held in the Kozak Room of the Edith B. Siegrist Vermillion Public
Library from noon to 9:00 p.m. on June 8, 2019. A copy of the request for the permit for
consumption is attached. As this organization is not affiliated with the City our request
form asks for a letter from the Library authorizing the event which is also attached.
State statute 35-1-5.5 provides that provides that the Governing Body of a municipality
may permit the consumption, but not sale, of any alcoholic beverage on property owned
by the public. The statute is as follows:
35-1-5.5. Permit for consumption of alcoholic beverage on property owned by public or nonprofit
corporation. The governing body of a municipality or county may permit the consumption, but not
the sale, of any alcoholic beverage on property owned by the public or by a nonprofit corporation
within its jurisdiction. The permit period may not exceed twenty-four hours and the hours of
authorized consumption may not exceed those permitted for on-sale licensees.

Discussion: The City Council may permit the consumption, but not the sale, of alcoholic
beverages on property owned by the public. The letter from the Library Director stated
the Library has authorized the event with alcoholic beverages but noted the need to obtain
a permit for consumption from the City Council.
Financial Consideration: None
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends approval of the permit for
consumption, but not sale, of alcoholic beverages in the Edith B. Siegrist Vermillion
Public Library Kozak room from noon to 9:00 p.m. on Saturday, June 8, 2019 requested
by Luann Ouellette on behalf of the Class of 59 for a class reunion.

8. New Business; item e

Council Agenda Memo
From:

José Domínguez, City Engineer

Meeting:

March 4, 2019

Subject:

Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of Four Vehicles

Presenter:

José Domínguez

Background: At budget sessions in August, the City Council reviewed the 2019
equipment replacement schedule. As part of the 2019 equipment replacement schedule,
the following vehicles were budgeted to be replaced:
DEPARTMENT
Street Department
Parks and Recreation Department
Parks and Recreation Department

VEHICLE TO BE REPLACED
2007 – ½ Ton Pickup Truck
2002 – ¾ Ton Pickup Truck
2001 – ½ Ton Pickup Truck

Solid Waste Department

2008 – ¾ Ton Pickup Truck

Discussion: Staff compared prices acquired from Sourcewell and the State awards for
vehicles with similar vehicles from Vermillion Ford and Jerry’s Chevrolet.
DEPARTMENT
STATE
Street
N.A.

Parks and Rec

Parks and Rec

Solid Waste

2019-Ford Super
Duty F-250
$28,902.00
N.A.

2019-Ford Super
Duty F-250
$28,902.00

SOURCEWELL
2019-Chevy
Silverado 2500HD
$34,492.00
N.A.

2019-Ford Super
Duty F-150
$24,241.00
N.A.

VERMILLION
FORD
2019-Ford Super
Duty F-250
$31,900.00
2019-Ford Super
Duty F-250
$28,880.00
2019-Ford Super
Duty F-150
$23,738.00
2019-Ford Super
Duty F-250
$28,880.00

JERRY’S
CHEVY.
2019-Chevy
Silverado 2500HD
$31,581.00
N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

After receiving these bids from the State and from Sourcewell, the City approached the
local dealers to see if they would, at the very least, match the Sourcewell and State
quotes.

8. New Business; item e

Financial Consideration: The 2019 Equipment Replacement Fund includes a budget of
$76,786 for the Street and Parks and Recreation vehicles. The Joint Powers Landfill
Fund has a budget of $40,000 for their purchase. The cost of the vehicles purchased from
the Equipment Replacement Fund come up to $84,199 and $28,880 from the other fund.
At this point it is estimated that the Equipment Replacement Fund will see a deficit of
$2,331 after all of the 2019 vehicle and equipment purchases and sales are completed.
The budget will have to be revised to cover any losses in the fund.
The Joint Powers Landfill Fund will see a savings. The saved money will remain in the
Fund.
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends approving the Resolution to
purchase the following vehicles from Vermillion Ford two 2019-Ford Super Duty F-250
for $57,760 and a 2019-Ford F-150 for $23,738; and from Jerry’s Chevrolet a 2019Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD for $31,581.

RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF
FOUR VEHICLES
WHEREAS, SDCL 5-18A-37 authorizes a governmental entity to enter into agreements with
purchasing agents in any other state for purchases under a joint agreement or contract at the
accepted bid price and the concurrence of said bidder; and
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion has reviewed and determined that the lowest bid awarded by
Sourcewell for a 3/4-ton pickup trucks is in the total amount of $34,492 which offers an
advantageous price to the City for said items; and
WHEREAS, the City has contacted Jerry’s Chevrolet of Vermillion and they have agreed to sell
the same vehicle offered through Sourcewell at the lower price of $31,581; and
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion has also reviewed and determined that the lowest bid
awarded to the State of South Dakota for two 3/4-ton pickup trucks is a total amount of $57,804;
and that the lowest bid awarded by Sourcewell for a ½-ton pickup truck for a total amount of
$24,241 which offers an advantageous price to the City for said items; and
WHEREAS, the City has contacted Vermillion Ford of Vermillion and they have agreed to sell
the same vehicles offered through the State of South Dakota and Sourcewell at the lower price of
$57,760 for two ¾-ton pickup trucks and $23,738 for a ½-ton pickup truck.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion,
that the City Finance Officer is hereby authorized to purchase one 2019 Chevrolet Silverado
2500HD from Jerry’s Chevrolet of Vermillion at the above stated price of $31,581; and two
2019 Ford Super Duty F-250 and one 2019 Ford Super Duty F-250 from Vermillion Ford of
Vermillion, South Dakota, at the above stated price of $81,498.
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 4th day of March, 2019.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA

By
John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor

ATTEST:

By___________________________
Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer

8. New Business; item f

Council Agenda Memo
From:

José Domínguez, City Engineer

Meeting:

March 4, 2019

Subject:

Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of a Utility Vehicle

Presenter:

José Domínguez

Background: At budget sessions in August, the City Council reviewed the 2019
equipment replacement schedule. As part of the 2019 equipment replacement schedule, a
2011 Toro Workman for the Bluffs Golf Course was scheduled for replacement.
Discussion: The National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance (National IPA), in
conjunction with the City of Tucson, AZ, bid with Toro Company has a 2019 Toro
Workman MDX Gas for $10,321.00. The Toro Company’s distributor for South Dakota
is Midwest Turf & Irrigation of Omaha, NE, and they would be honoring the National
IPA awarded bid.
Financial Consideration: The 2019 Equipment Replacement Fund includes a budget of
$11,000 for this purchase. The existing utility vehicle will be kept and moved to the
Parks and Recreation Department’s fleet.
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends approving the Resolution to
purchase a 2019 Toro Workman MDX Gas from the Toro Company’s participating
distributor, Midwest Turf & Irrigation, for a price of $10,321.00.

RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF
ONE UTILITY VEHICLE
WHEREAS, SDCL 5-18A-37 authorizes a governmental entity to enter into agreements with
purchasing agents in any other state for purchases under a joint agreement or contract at the
accepted bid price and the concurrence of said bidder; and
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion has reviewed and determined that the bid awarded by the
National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance (National IPA) for a golf course utility vehicle
from Toro Company’s participating distributor, Midwest Turf & Irrigation, for the total amount
of $10,321 offers an advantageous price to the City for said item; and
WHEREAS, the City has contacted Midwest Turf & Irrigation and they have agreed to allow the
City to purchase a utility vehicle for the contract price and terms as awarded by the National
IPA.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion,
that the City Finance Officer is hereby authorized to purchase a new 2019 Toro Workman
MDX Gas from Midwest Turf & Irrigation of Omaha, Nebraska for a price of $10,321.
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 4th day of March, 2019.
THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA

By
John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor

ATTEST:

By
Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer

8. New Business; item g

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Mike Carlson, Finance Officer

Meeting:

March 4, 2019

Subject:

Appointment to the Consolidated Board of Equalization

Presenter:

Mike Carlson

Background: The County, City and School District have each adopted resolutions to
consolidate the Board of Equalization within city limits. The Consolidated Board hears
citizen appeals of real estate valuation within the city and is made up of the five County
Commissioners, three City Council members, and one School Board member. The
County Auditor and Director of Equalization schedule the appointments for the
consolidated board.
Prior to having a Consolidated Board of Equalization, the City Council, along with one
School Board member, comprised the local Board of Equalization that heard appeals. If
the citizen did not agree with the finding of the local board, they would then appeal to the
county board. If the Director of Equalization did not agree with the local board’s
decision, he could change the valuation and the citizen would need to go to the county
board to make their appeal again. The Consolidated Board makes it easier for the citizen
as they only need to go before one board with their appeal.
Discussion: The City Council will need to appoint three members to serve as City
representatives on the consolidated board; the remaining members will be designated as
alternates to fill a vacancy if a member is unable to attend. Ina Peterson, from the
Assessor’s Office, reported the first day of hearings as April 16, 2019 starting about 1:00
p.m. which in the last few years has not taken the entire afternoon.
Financial Consideration: None
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends the City Council appoint
three members to serve on the Consolidated Board of Equalization with the remaining
members being designated as alternates.

8. New Business; item h

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Mike Carlson, Finance Officer

Meeting:

March 4, 2019

Subject:

Presentation of 2018 Annual Financial Report

Presenter:

Mike Carlson

Background: The annual financial report is required to be presented to the City Council
at the first regular meeting of May. The following state statute is applicable:
9-22-21. Annual financial report--Publication--Filing. The financial officer shall report to the
governing body no later than the first regular meeting of May of each year, the receipts, expenses
and financial condition of the municipality. The report shall include the amount of funds in the
treasury at the time the report is made and where and in what amounts the funds are deposited or
invested. The report shall be published in the official newspaper, or any other newspaper as the
governing body may direct within thirty days after the report is made to the governing body or on
completion of an annual audit. By the last day of May each year the financial officer shall file a copy
of the report with the Department of Legislative Audit.

The state statute was changed last year moving the date from the first meeting in March
to the first meeting in May. As the City is required to have an annual audit, having the
report done now allows time to complete the balance of the comprehensive annual report
for the auditors to begin work at the end of April.
Discussion: The report, as presented, is unaudited and contains only the financial section.
For the annual audit, the introductory, management discussion and analysis, footnotes
and statistical sections contained in the comprehensive annual financial report will be
completed and included in the audited report. Upon acknowledgement of receipt by the
City Council, the required exhibits will be published and a copy will be sent to the
Department of Legislative Audit. The City Council has previously approved a contract
with Williams & Company, P.C. to audit the financial statements that will be performed
in April to June.
In the past, there have been questions on what is included in the report so attached is a
more detailed explanation of the unaudited financial statements.
Financial Consideration: The cost will be the publication of the required information.

8. New Business; item h

Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends that the City Council
acknowledge receipt of the 2018 Annual Financial Report in the official minutes.

From:

Mike Carlson, Finance Officer

Meeting:

March 4, 2019

Subject:

2018 Annual Financial Report additional information

Presenter:

Mike Carlson

Mayor and City Council:
The 2018 unaudited annual financial report was included in your packet. The annual report is
required to be presented to the City Council by the first meeting in May. The report, as
presented, is unaudited and the City has contracted with the firm Williams & Company to audit
the financial statements. Prior to the audit being complete, we will complete the introductory
section, management discussion and analysis, footnotes to the financial statements and statistical
sections all required for the comprehensive annual financial report.
There is a lot of information consolidated into this report and the following is provided as
explanation of the individual statements contained in the report.
Exhibits 1 and 2, contained on pages 5 and 7, are the government-wide financial statements.
These two exhibits report the City operations similar to financial reports of business entities by
including all assets, depreciation, receivables, payables and debt. Reported on page 5 is the net
position of the City separated into columns for governmental activities, business-type activities
and total for the City. The last column is the information of Housing and Redevelopment
Authority that is considered to be a component unit of the City as the City Council created the
entity and appoints the Board members, thus requiring their information to be included in the
City’s annual report. The information reported for the Housing and Redevelopment Authority is
taken from their audited financial statements.
Exhibit 1, on page 5, the Statement of Net Position, reports that the City has over $115 million of
assets and deferred outflows of resources ($113,566,812) plus ($2,166,450) and just under $30
million of liabilities and deferred inflows of resources ($29,419,961) plus ($524,805) leaving net
position of over $85 million ($85,788,496). Last year (2017) the City reported over $83 million
of net position ($83,001,201), thus an increase of over $2.7 million ($2,787,364) in net position
for the year ended 2018.
Exhibit 2, on Page 7, the Statement of Activities, lists in the first column the expenses, followed
by columns for charges for goods and services, operating and capital grants that are received for
the corresponding expenditures. This exhibit shows the revenue and expense including
depreciation by activity and the changes in net position for governmental activities and business
type activities and a total for the City. Governmental activities net position increased by
$650,392 while business activities net position increased by $2,136,903 for a total increase in the
City’s net position of just over $2.7 million ($2,787,295). If the City was a private business, this
would be the net income for 2018. Again, as in Exhibit 1, the last column is the activities of the
Housing and Redevelopment Authority.

Exhibit 3, on page 8, reports the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet for the individual major
funds (General Fund and Second Penny Sales Tax Fund) and a total column for all other
governmental funds. The General Fund is considered a major fund as well as any other fund that
has over 10% of the total governmental fund assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures or 5% of
the entity total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures. This year, the major fund is Second
Penny Sales Tax Fund. The total other governmental funds are made up of the 15 remaining
governmental funds whose individual fund balance sheets are reported on Exhibit A-1 on pages
22 & 23.
Exhibit 3A, on page 9, is a reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet with a fund
balance shown on page 8 of $9,875,518 to the Total Net Position reported on the Statement of
Net Position shown on page 5 of $41,555,133. The reconciliation adds in capital assets that are
not reported in governmental funds, receivables that are not available to pay current period
expenditures, prepaid expenses that are expenditures in governmental fund when paid, net assets
of internal service funds that provide services to City funds and pension related items.
Reductions are long term liabilities, accrued leave payable, accrued interest payable, bond
premium and pension related items.
Exhibit 4, on page 10, reports the Governmental Fund Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance for the individual major funds (General Fund and Second Penny Sales Tax Fund)
and a total column for all other governmental funds. The total other governmental funds is made
up of the 15 remaining governmental funds whose individual fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balance are reported on Exhibit A-2 on pages 24 & 25.
Exhibit 4A, on page 11, is a reconciliation of the change in fund balance from page 10 of
$386,905 to the changes in net position shown on page 7 of $650,392. The reconciliation adjusts
for inventory, expenditures for capital assets, depreciation, the loss on disposal of capital assets,
payment on long term debt, change in prepaid expenses, change in accrued interest, pension
related activities and net revenue of internal service funds.
Exhibit 5, 6 & 7, on pages 12, 13 & 14, are the statements of net position, revenues and expenses
and changes in net position and statement of cash flows for the business type funds, electric,
water, wastewater, liquor, golf, Joint Powers and curbside recycling. The last column is the total
of the internal service funds made up of the copier, fax, postage fund, unemployment insurance
fund, equipment replacement fund and custodial fund (the individual internal service fund
activity is reported on page 31, 32 & 33).
Exhibit 5, on page 12, titled Statement of Net Position, reports for the individual proprietary
funds (business-type funds) the fund assets, liabilities and net position.
Exhibit 6, on page 13, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, reported
an operating income for all funds except the golf course. Each fund reported an increase in net
position, with the exception of the golf course. The golf course reported a ($133,137) decrease in
net position that is attributed to the impact of weather on course volumes.

Exhibit 7, on page 14, Statement of Cash Flows reports for the proprietary funds (business type
funds) the individual fund cash flows. An item to note are in the total column the City enterprise
funds acquired $3,373,156 of capital assets, received bond proceeds of $391,646 and retired
$1,336,032 of debt during 2018.
Exhibit 8, on page 16, reports the general fund revenues and expenditures compared to budget
and the variance from budget. The general fund revenues were below the budget by $27,724 and
expenses are below budget by $395,403. The general fund transfers out budgeted at $1,544,952
was not all transferred out with the majority of the funds not transferred were for the STIP
capital project for Jefferson Street reconstruction. To balance the 2018 budget, it was projected
to use $1,070,091 of general fund reserves. The City ended 2018 using general fund reserves of
$628,592 thus the general fund ending reserve is larger than budgeted.
Exhibit 9, on page 17, reports the Second Penny Sales Tax fund revenues and expenditures
compared to budget and the variance from budget. Revenues are $6,745 below budget,
expenditures are $334,820 under budget and transfers out were $27,694 under budget. The
largest line item of expenditures under budget was Parks Equipment of $246,493 which is the
bathroom project bid in 2018 with just a portion completed. The Second Penny sales tax budget
was an increase of $359,271 with actual increase of $715,040 for 2018.
Exhibit 10, on page 18, lists the City Deposit accounts. The City maintains change funds at the
City Hall Utility Office, Landfill, Recycling Center, Golf Course, Liquor Store and Police
Department. The operating checking account is at CorTrust Bank. City reserve funds are
invested in certificates of deposit at local banks and SD Public Funds Investment Trust by
comparing yield rates. Investments are with the SD Public Funds Investment Trust for bond
reserves, bond payments and landfill closure reserve. The Library Board operations are reported
as a governmental special revenue fund and, as such, their depositories are included in the annual
report. The investments at First National Bank are the city hall bond reserves and the electric
transmission line bond reserve. As trustee, for the bonds, they hold the reserve funds.
Exhibit A-1 and A-2, on page 22-25, contain the combining balance sheet for non major
governmental funds and the combining statement of revenues and expenditures. The total from
Exhibit A-1 move forward to page 8 and totals from Exhibit A-2 move forward to page 10.
Exhibit A-3, on pages 26-27, report the budget vs. actual for the non-major special revenue funds
and Exhibit A-4, on pages 28-29, report the budget vs. actual for the capital projects funds.
Exhibit B-1, B-2 and B-3, on pages 31, 32 & 33, report the activities from the internal service
funds. These funds provide goods and services to other funds within the City. The copier-faxpostage fund reported decrease in net position of $1,617 and unemployment fund increased by
$169. While not large, we will monitor to see that charges for services meet the costs of
providing the services. The totals on these exhibits move forward to Exhibits 5, 6 & 7 on pages
12-14.
An item to note is that GASB 68 requires the city to report its proportionate share of the net
South Dakota Retirement System (SDRS) assets or liabilities. At June 30, 2017 the SDRS was
100.1% funded thus the city reported a net pension asset of $25,896. At June 30, 2018 the SDRS

was 100.02% funded thus the city is reporting a net pension asset of $6,653. The reporting of the
SDRS net assets/liabilities, pension related deferred outflows and pension related deferred
inflows resulted in a $526,514 decrease in net assets of the city for the calendar year 2018.

8. New Business; item i

Council Agenda Memo
From:

John Prescott, City Manager

Meeting:

March 4, 2019

Subject:

Funding request for SD Special Olympics 2019 summer games

Presenter:

John Prescott

Background: Last December, the City was approached about a contribution to the
Special Olympics State Summer Games. The 2019 Summer Games will take place in
Vermillion on May 16, 17, and 18, 2019. Vermillion will also host the Special Olympics
State Summer Games in 2020. The funding request was sent to the Labor and Finance
Committee.
Discussion: The Labor and Finance Committee met after the February 4, 2019 evening
City Council meeting to discuss the donation request. The Committee recommendation to
the City Council at the February 19 meeting was for a contribution of $2,500 for the May
2019 games.
Financial Consideration: City staff is proposing the contribution come from the Bed,
Board and Booze fund. The Special Olympic Summer Games is a statewide event that
will have participants from across the state and will be promoted throughout South
Dakota.
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends approval of the
contribution of $2,500 to the SD Special Olympics for promotion of the 2019 summer
games from the BBB sales tax fund.

9. Bid Openings; item b

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Jose Dominguez, City Engineer

Meeting:

March 4, 2019

Subject:

5-year Golf Cart Lease

Presenter:

Jose Dominguez

Background: On February 20, 2019, the City opened bids for a new golf cart lease for
the Bluffs Golf Course. The Bluffs Golf Course does not own its golf carts; like many
other golf courses, the carts are leased for several years and returned to the owner. The
golf carts are leased from a dealer/distributor, with the cost of annual maintenance
covered by the dealer. The Bluff’s has typically leased forty (40) golf carts for a five year
period. Currently, the Bluffs also leases one beverage cart.
Discussion: The current golf cart lease agreement with Yamaha Golf & Utility expires on
May 1, 2019. The new lease agreement will run from March 5, 2019 to March 4, 2024.
Bid specs for forty new golf cars and for one new beverage cart were prepared and
provided to area dealers/distributors. Two proposals were considered, proposal 1 for forty
new golf carts and one new beverage cart for a 5-year lease and proposal 2 for forty new
golf carts and one new beverage cart for a 6-year lease.
The City received bids from three companies. Some of the bids received also included
additional variations. Following is a table with all of the bids received and the yearly rent
listed.
BIDDER
Yamaha Golf &
Utility, Burnsville,
MN

Yamaha Golf &
Utility, Burnsville,
MN

NOTES
PROPOSAL 1
40 Yamaha
$34,477.92
Quietech EFI and
1 Yamaha
UMAX Bistro
EFI
40 Yamaha AEFI $34,152.66
and 1 Yamaha
UMAX Bistro
EFI

PROPOSAL 2
$38,555.42

$37,861.70

9. Bid Openings; item b

BIDDER
NB Golf Cars,
Sioux Falls

Miller and Sons
Golf Cars, Elkhorn,
NE
Miller and Sons
Golf Cars, Elkhorn,
NE

NOTES
40 Club Car
Tempo Connect
and 1 Club Car
Café Express
40 EZ-GO Txt
(20 EFI and 20
Carburetors) and
1 EZ-GO Oasis
40 EZ-GO Txt
EFI and 1 EZGO Oasis

PROPOSAL 1

PROPOSAL 2

$41,076.42

$45,254.79

$40,696.80

$43,380.00

$42,501.60

$45,532.80

Even though the other proposal 1 from Yamaha Golf and Utility is lower, the City will
experience greater savings over the five years due to the fuel efficiency with the Yamaha
Quietech proposal 1.
Financial Consideration: The 2019 budget includes funding for a golf cart lease.
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends awarding the bid to
Yamaha Golf & Utility, from Burnsville, MN, on proposal 1 on a 5-year lease for 40
Yamaha Quietech EFI and 1 Yamaha UMAX Bistro EFI for $34,477.92 per year for the
next 5-years.

9. Bid Openings; item c

Council Agenda Memo
From:

Jose Dominguez, City Engineer

Meeting:

March 4, 2019

Subject:

2019 Chip Seal Project

Presenter:

Jose Dominguez

Background: Chip-sealing is a cost-effective way to extend the life of asphalt streets
between more expensive overlays. The process consists of the application of rapid curing
polymerized asphalt oil which is covered by quartzite chips. The chip seal oil protects the
existing asphalt overlay surface by sealing small cracks and voids. The quartzite chip
layer also reduces the sun’s UV effects on the surface.
Bids were opened February 20, 2019 for the 2019 Chip Seal Project. Three bids were
received. The low bid was from Topkote of Yankton in the amount of $114,671.71.
Following is a table with all of the received bids.
BIDDERS
Topkote, from Yankton
The Road Guy, from Yankton
ASCO, from Sioux Falls

BID
$114,671.71
$139,768.65
$182,343.80

City’s estimate

$122,000.00

Discussion: Bid specifications were sent to four potential bidders in the area. Bidding is
required by state law when the cost of the project exceeds $50,000. This project was
estimated to cost more than the bid limit so bids were requested.
The proposed project will take place in roads located in the east, downtown area, and the
areas below the bluff of the City. The contract calls for the project to be completed by
August 10, 2019.
Financial Consideration: The street department budgeted for the annual chip seal project
under the second penny sales tax fund street construction and asphalt overlays line item.
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends awarding the 2019 chip
seal contract to Topkote for the amount of $114,671.71.

CITY OF VERMILLION
INVOICES PAYABLE-MARCH 4, 2019
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48

A-OX WELDING SUPPLY CO
A.R.K MEDIA ACCOUNTING SERVICE
AMERICINN
ANIMAL CARE EQUIPMENT & SERVICE
APPEARA
ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES
ARGUS LEADER MEDIA #1085
ARROW INTERNATIONAL, INC
BANNER ASSOCIATES, INC
BASIN ELECTRIC POWER COOP.
BIG STATE INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY
BLACKSTONE PUBLISHING
BLICK ART MATERIALS
BORDER STATES ELEC SUPPLY
BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC
BRENDAN JOHNSON
BROADCASTER PRESS
BUTLER MACHINERY CO.
CALLAWAY GOLF
CAMPBELL SUPPLY
CANNON TECHNOLOGIES, INC
CASK & CORK
CENTURY BUSINESS PRODUCTS
CENTURYLINK
CHRISTENSEN RADIATOR & REPAIR
CITY OF VERMILLION
CITY OF VERMILLION
CLAY COUNTY EMS ASSOCIATION
COACHING SYSTEMS, LLC
COLONIAL LIFE ACC INS.
COMPLIANCESIGNS
CORE & MAIN LP
CORNHUSKER INTERNATIONAL TRUCK
COYOTE CHEMICAL COMPANY
COYOTE RENTALS
COYOTE SPORTS PROPERTIES
CRYSTAL BRADY
CUMMINS CENTRAL POWER, LLC
CYLIE HANSON
D-P TOOLS
DAIZY WAREH
DAKOTA BEVERAGE
DAKOTA PC WAREHOUSE
DANIEL KLETT
DELTA DENTAL PLAN
DEMCO
DENNIS MARTENS
DREW GORTMAKER

CHEMICALS
ADVERTISING
LODGING
SUPPLIES
SHOP TOWELS
UNIFORM CLEANING
SUBSCRIPTION
SUPPLIES
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
GLOVES/HAND WARMERS
BOOKS
SUPPLIES
PARTS
SUPPLIES
REFUND PARKING TCKT OVERPMT
ADVERTISING
REPAIRS/PARTS
MERCHANDISE
SUPPLIES
ELECTRIC METERS
MERCHANDISE
COPIER CONTRACT/COPIES
TELEPHONE
SNOW PLOW
COPIES/POSTAGE
UTILITY BILL
CRP CARDS
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
INSURANCE
SIGNS
PARTS
PARTS
PARTS
WATER HEATER/WIRING REBATE
ADVERTISING
GYM MEMBERSHIP REIMBURSEMENT
REPAIRS
SAFETY BOOTS REIMBURSEMENT
SUPPLIES
REFUND PARKING TCKT OVERPMT
MERCHANDISE
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES/SUPPLIES
REFUND PARKING TCKT OVERPMT
INSURANCE
SUPPLIES
MAINTENANCE
GYM MEMBERSHIP REIMBURSEMENT

1,661.50
135.00
576.00
189.12
45.00
323.56
25.00
612.50
23,090.40
243.95
884.40
150.00
82.65
42.19
2,733.80
5.00
315.00
2,621.45
155.19
1,695.98
32,283.00
124.82
183.16
696.46
6,833.00
1,167.69
38,647.15
30.00
550.00
2,860.47
256.13
1,303.20
58.74
26.20
170.00
2,000.00
186.00
1,178.05
100.00
356.42
5.00
6,035.10
234.96
5.00
6,197.40
97.09
833.34
186.38

49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99

DRIVERS LICENSE GUIDE CO
EBSCO
ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY
ELLIOTT EQUIPMENT CO
EMBROIDERY & SCREEN WORKS
EQUIMEDIC USA, INC
EQUIPMENT BLADES INC
ESO SOLUTIONS, INC
FASTENAL COMPANY
FIRE SERVICE TRAINING BUREAU
FRONTIER PRECISION, INC
GALE
GLOBAL DIST.
GLOBAL EQUIPMENT COMPANY
GRAHAM TIRE
GRAHAM TIRE CO.
GRAYBAR ELECTRIC
GRAYMONT CAPITAL INC
GREGG PETERS
GREGG PETERS
GREGOIRE EXCAVATING, LLC
HERCULES INDUSTRIES, INC
HERREN-SCHEMPP BUILDING
HOA SOLUTIONS, INC
HY VEE FOOD STORE
INDEPENDENCE WASTE
INGRAM
INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGY & SERVICE
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL
JACKS UNIFORM & EQPT
JAY'S PLUMBING
JOHN A CONKLING DIST.
JOHNSEN HEATING & COOLING
JOHNSON BROTHERS OF SD
JOHNSON CONTROLS
JONES FOOD CENTER
JSA CONSULTING ENGINEERS
KARSTEN MFG CORP
LAWSON PRODUCTS INC
LEISURE LAWN CARE
LESSMAN ELEC. SUPPLY CO
LOCATORS AND SUPPLIES, INC
MARK CLARK
MART AUTO BODY
MARTINSON CONSTRUCTION
MATHESON TRI-GAS, INC
MATT DAVIS
MC2, INC
MCCULLOCH LAW OFFICE
MEAD LUMBER
MEDICAL WASTE TRANSPORT, INC

BOOK
SUBSCRIPTION
SUPPLIES
PARTS
UNIFORMS/EMBROIDERY
CONTAINERS
PARTS
CODES BOOKS
SAFETY GLASSES
REGISTRATION
SUPPLIES
BOOKS
MERCHANDISE
PARTS
TIRES
TIRES
SUPPLIES
CHEMICALS
FREIGHT/REIMBURSEMENT
RENT
HAUL SNOW
SUPPLIES
MATERIALS
REPAIRS
BAKERY
WASTE HAULING
BOOKS
SOFTWARE LICENSE
REGISTRATION/BOOKS
UNIFORM
REPAIRS
MERCHANDISE
REPAIRS
MERCHANDISE
REPAIRS
SUPPLIES
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
MERCHANDISE
PARTS
LAWN APPLICATIONS
SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES
LODGING/MEAL REIMBURSEMENT
TOWING
HAUL SNOW
SUPPLIES
MEALS REIMBURSEMENT
PARTS WASTEWATER
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
SUPPLIES
HAUL MEDICAL WASTE

62.85
73.31
1,219.25
3,835.44
379.00
2,104.63
1,967.32
590.00
254.15
325.00
2,299.38
164.25
52.00
472.20
343.00
1,185.16
3,000.60
8,221.71
3,268.80
937.50
244.89
567.71
25.20
3,403.52
74.95
866.52
3,573.95
150.00
1,108.00
455.44
165.35
2,386.80
839.79
16,458.22
1,707.74
115.75
1,200.00
738.79
82.91
767.60
843.00
346.06
1,379.99
2,075.00
244.80
787.47
159.00
13,937.06
2,425.20
34.90
108.76

100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150

MEREDITH BOOKS
MICHAEL CARLSON
MICRO MARKETING LLC
MIDWEST ALARM CO
MIDWEST TURF & IRRIGATION
MIDWEST WHEEL COMPANIES
MISSOURI VALLEY MAINTENANCE
MOORE WELDING & MFG
MOTOROLA INC
MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO
NATIONAL ASSOC OF SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS
NATIONAL FIRE PROTECTION ASSOCIATION
NCL OF WISCONSIN, INC
NEBRASKA JOURNAL-LEADER
NETSYS+
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS
OFFICE SYSTEMS CO
OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY
OVERHEAD DOOR OF SIOUX CITY
PCC, INC
PENNWELL CORPORATION/FDIC
PHYSIO-CONTROL CORP
PKG CONTRACTING, INC
PLAIN TALK PUBLISHERS
PRESSING MATTERS
PRESTO-X-COMPANY
PRINT SOURCE
PROCHEM DYNAMICS
PWW MEDIA INC
QUILL
RACOM CORPORATION
RECORDED BOOKS, INC
REEL SHARP
REPUBLIC NATIONAL DISTRIBUTING
SANFORD HEALTH OCCUPATIONAL
SANFORD HEALTH PLAN
SANITATION PRODUCTS INC
SCHAEFFER MFG. CO
SCHUMACHER OIL
SD ASSOC. OF RURAL WTR SYSTEMS
SD CITY MGMT ASSOCIATION
SD DEPT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
SD MUNICIPAL LEAGUE
SD REDBOOK FUND
SD RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SERVICE MASTER OF SE SOUTH DAKOTA
SERVICEMASTER CLEAN OF SE
SOOLAND BOBCAT
SOUTHERN GLAZER'S OF SD
STATE HYGIENIC LABORATORY
STUART C. IRBY CO.

BOOKS
MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT
BOOKS
ALARM MONITORING
PARTS
SUPPLIES
REPAIRS
REPAIRS
REMOTE SPEAKER MICS/CHARGER
SUPPLIES
MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL
SUBSCRIPTION
SUPPLIES
ADVERTISING
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
PARTS
COPIER CONTRACT/COPIES
SERVICE CONTRACT
REPAIRS
COMMISSION
REGISTRATION FIRE
AMBULANCE EQUIPMENT
WWTF DIGESTER IMPROVEMENTS
SUBSCRIPTION
SUPPLIES
INSPECTION/TREATMENT
ADVERTISING/SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES
TRAINING DVDS
SUPPLIES
MAINTENANCE
BOOKS
SHARPENING
MERCHANDISE
TESTING
PARTICIPATION FEE
SUPPLIES
PARTS
OIL
REGISTRATION
REGISTRATION
TELETYPE SERVICE
HANDBOOKS
SUBSCRIPTION
CONTRIBUTIONS
CUSTODIAL
FURNITURE CLEANING
FILTERS/HYD OIL
MERCHANDISE
TESTING
PARTS

33.98
210.00
119.99
150.75
815.37
209.79
1,311.95
114.24
1,320.04
117.98
40.00
1,831.41
431.72
54.96
1,141.00
212.68
753.04
1,229.38
2,014.36
3,667.54
1,820.85
14,871.33
27,979.88
26.00
19.00
59.00
600.04
463.87
300.00
862.08
465.96
449.80
2,553.75
20,107.10
35.00
60.00
42.44
1,129.96
777.70
450.00
50.00
3,590.00
70.00
300.00
56,568.57
4,323.74
102.90
967.48
185.12
1,080.00
8,005.10

151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190

STURDEVANTS AUTO PARTS
SUPERIOR HOOD STEAMERS, INC
SYNCB/AMAZON
TASTE OF HOME BOOKS
THE EQUALIZER
THE UPS STORE #6751
THE WALKING BILLBOARD
TITLEIST DRAWER CS
TONY KLUNDER
TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN
TRAVIS TAGGART
TRAVIS TARR
TRENT SORBE
TRUE BRANDS
TWIN CITY HARDWARE
TWO WAY SOLUTIONS
ULINE
UNITED LABORATORIES
UNITED WAY
UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
UTILITY EQUIPMENT CO.
VALARIE HOWER
VAST BROADBAND
VERIZON WIRELESS
VERMILLION ACE HARDWARE
VERMILLION AUTO WORKS
VERMILLION CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
VERMILLION FASTPITCH SOFTBALL
VERMILLION HOUSING AUTHORITY
VISA/FIRST BANK & TRUST
WAL-MART COMMUNITY
WALKER CONSTRUCTION
WESCO DISTRIBUTION, INC
YANKTON FIRE & SAFETY
YANKTON MEDICAL CLINIC
ZEBEC OF NORTH AMERICA. INC
ZEE MEDICAL SERVICE
ZIEGLER INC
RD STECKELBERT
TRAVIS TARR

PARTS
HOOD/VENT CLEANING
BOOKS/DVDS/SUPPLIES
BOOKS
ADVERTISING
SHIPPING
UNIFORM SHIRTS
MERCHANDISE
GYM MEMBERSHIP REIMBURSEMENT
PARTS
MEALS REIMBURSEMENT
SAFETY BOOTS REIMBURSEMENT
REFUND PARKING TCKT OVERPMT
MERCHANDISE
REPAIRS
PORTABLE RADIOS
SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES
CONTRIBUTIONS
INSURANCE
WATER METERS
CLASS REIMBURSEMENT
911 CIRCUIT/DIALUP SERVICES
IPAD ACCESS/CELL PHONES
SUPPLIES/PARTS
REPAIRS
FUNDING/VERMILLION BUCKS
SPONSORSHIP
AUDIT CONTRIBUTION
FUEL/LODGING/SUPPLIES
SUPPLIES
COTTON PARK BATHROOM
SUPPLIES
EXTINGUISHER
TESTING
WATERPARK TUBES
SUPPLIES
REPAIRS
BRIGHT ENERGY REBATE
BRIGHT ENERGY REBATE
GRAND TOTAL

2,265.34
740.18
1,100.13
31.98
409.00
18.13
222.00
2,695.00
250.00
163.09
199.00
100.00
5.00
584.65
128.25
10,030.00
448.95
2,110.41
688.00
1,475.27
9,310.00
200.00
1,415.45
2,162.93
1,231.16
1,456.69
62,680.00
350.00
6,600.00
4,245.86
879.50
6,243.84
1,000.00
75.00
171.00
1,093.00
100.79
665.80
150.00
48.00
$514,062.62

